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Audit Committee Report for the year under review 
 

 We are pleased to submit the Audit and Risk Committee Report for the year ended 28 February 2019, as required by the 
Companies Act No. 71 of 2008 and recommended by King IV. 
 

The Company’s Audit and Risk Committee (“Committee”)  is a subcommittee of the Board of Directors (“Board”) and in addition 

to having specific statutory responsibilities to the shareholders in terms of the Companies Act, it assists the Board through 

advising and making submissions on financial reporting, oversight of the risk management process and internal financial 

controls, external audit functions and statutory and regulatory compliance of the Company. 

Committee membership  

The Committee met seven times in the past year and comprises three members, with all members being independent non-

executive directors as highlighted above. The Chief Executive Officer, The Chief Financial Officer, Head of Legal, Risk and 

Compliance and the external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers are standing invitees at Committee meetings. During the 

year under review we also welcomed Ms Hlatshwayo as a member to the Committee following the resignation of Ms N Gosa 

and would like to take the opportunity to thank Ms Gosa for her valued contributions to the Committee. We look forward to 

the solid experience that Ms Hlatshwayo brings to the Committee. 

All Committee members have the requisite financial skills and experience to contribute to the Committees deliberations. The 

members of the Committee were nominated by the Board for re-election at the 2019 Annual General Meeting.  

Report for the year under review 

The Committee is satisfied that it has complied with its legal, regulatory and other responsibilities and that it has discharged 

its functions in terms of its terms of reference as ascribed to it in terms of S94(7) of the Companies Act as follows: 

• Reviewed the 2019 annual financial statements and the significant matters culminating in recommendation to the Board 
to adopt them; 

• Reviewed the key audit matters which were based on the external auditor’s professional judgement and considered most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the year under review. These matters 
were addressed in the context of the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole and related 
to the valuation of the loan to Legend Power Solution Proprietary Limited and expected credit losses on loans and 
receivables. 

• Took appropriate steps to ensure that the financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Listings 
Requirements of the Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE) Limited and proactive monitoring of financial statements, 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, and are based upon appropriate accounting policies 
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates; 

• Reviewed the appropriateness of the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements; 

• Considered and, where appropriate, made recommendations on internal financial controls; 

• Verified the independence of the external auditor, PwC Inc as the auditor for the Company, noting that the external 
auditors have served a tenure of at the Company. The Committee having considered the assessment on its external 
auditors have agreed to recommend that the external auditors continue in office until the conclusion of the next Annual 
General Meeting, noting that Mr Sizwe Masondo is the appointed individual registered auditor and member of PwC. 

• Considered and approved the audit fees payable to the external auditors for the year ended 28 February 2019; 

• Confirmed that no reportable irregularities were identified and reported by the external auditors in terms of the Auditing 
Profession Act; 

• Performed the committee’s functions for identified subsidiaries within the Group as contemplated in S94(7) of the 
Companies Act; 

• Reviewed the external audit report on the annual financial statements; and 

• Evaluated the effectiveness of the risk management process and controls. 
 

To ensure that matters are openly and thoroughly discussed, the Committee meets independently with management and the 

external auditors and serves as link between the Board and the external auditors. 

 

The Committee, during the year under review, did not receive any complaints relating to the accounting practices, the content 

or the audit of the financial statements or any related such matters. 
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Expertise and experience of the Chief Financial Officer 

As required by the JSE Listing Requirements, para 3.84(h), the Committee has satisfied itself that the Chief Financial Officer, 

Masibulele Dem, has the appropriate experience and expertise. The Committee has also satisfied itself regarding the 

experience, expertise and resources of the finance function. 

Internal Audit Function 

During the year under review, the Committee had deliberated on the appointment of an internal audit function and a request 

for proposal, with defined criteria, was submitted inviting external medium tier firms to make an application. The Committee 

is in the process of interviews and discussions with the applicants with a view to making an appointment in the year ahead. 

The appointment of an internal audit function is to enable an effective control environment, to support the integrity of 

information used for internal decision-making by management, the Board, its committees and to support the integrity of the 

organisation’s external reporting. 

Comments on key audit matters, addressed by PwC in its external auditor's report 

The external auditors have reported on two key audit matters in respect of their 2019 audit, being: the valuation of loan to 

Legend Power Solution Proprietary Limited and expected credit losses on loans and receivables. 

Both of these key audit matters related to material financial statement line items and require judgement and estimates to be 

applied by management. The committee assessed the methodology, assumptions and judgements applied by management 

in dealing with each of the key audit matters. Furthermore, the committee discussed the key audit matters with the external 

auditors to understand their related audit processes and views. Following our assessment, we were comfortable with the 

conclusions reached by management and the external auditors. 

Looking forward 

The Company’s financial controls, risk management and governance processes ensure a strong control environment for the 

Company in which to operate. The Company is committed to building a better future within the energy industry. We have 

reviewed expertise, resources and the experience of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and financial function and are 

satisfied that these requirements are adequate for the forthcoming year. 

Sustainability report 

As an investment holding Company, we are actively aware of the importance of sustainability, economic, social and environmental 

behaviours of Companies we invest in and are conscious to drive the long-term prosperity of the communities of where are 

investments are situated. The Committee is comfortable that the Company operated in the year under review as a socially 

responsible corporate citizen demonstrating an ongoing commitment to sustainable development as reported in the Social and 

Ethics Committee report. 

 

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee 

   

 

Prof.B. Marx 

Chairman Audit and Risk Committee 
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval 
 

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements of Hulisani Limited, 

comprising the  consolidated and separate statements of financial position at 28 February 2019, and the consolidated and separate 

statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 

notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and the 

directors’ report. 

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate accounting 

records and an effective system of risk management. 

The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the company and its subsidiaries to continue as going concerns and have 

no reason to believe that the businesses will not be going concerns in the year ahead. 

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable 

financial reporting framework. 

The financial statements set out on pages 18 to 91, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 

board of directors on 28 May 2019 and were signed on their behalf by: 

 

Approval of financial statements 

 

                              

 

M.E. Raphulu (Chief Executive Officer)       P.C. Mdoda (Chairman) 

 

Preparer of the financial statements 

Hulisani Limited’s financial statements for the period ended 28 February 2019 have been prepared under the supervision of the 

chief financial officer, Masibulele Dem CA (SA) and audited in compliance with the Companies Act of South Africa. 

 

 

M.P. Dem (Chief Financial Officer) 
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Group Secretary’s Certification  

 

In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, I certify that the group has lodged with the Commissioner 

all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the Act and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date. 

 

 

 

J. Govender (Company Secretary) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Hulisani Group 

(Registration number 2015/363903/06) 

Trading as Hulisani Limited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2019 

7 
 

Directors’ Report 

 

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of the company and the group for the year ended 

28 February 2019. 

1. Nature of business 

Hulisani Limited. ("The company") was incorporated on 13 October 2015 as an investment holding company focused on energy 

projects ranging from gas, solar PV, concentrated solar, wind and hydro, in South Africa and in Sub-Saharan Africa, and is the 

ultimate holding company of the group. 

2. Financial performance 

The year ended February 2019 is the second year of the company’s operations as an investment holding company and the first 

full 12-month period where the company has earned income from investment activities. The prior year ended February 2018, was 

the inaugural year where equity investments were made, and income was accordingly earned for only a portion of the year. The 

results consist of the 2019 group annual financial statements as well as the holding company annual financial statements. Key 

factors that have driven performance for the year under review include the following:  

• Revenue 

• Operating costs 

• Share of profits or losses from associates 

• Investment valuations and impairments 

• Expected credit loss provisions 
 

Revenue 
 
Revenue of R50.3m for the period under review is reported.  Revenue at group level consists of sales of electricity at RustMo1 Solar 
Farm (Pty) Ltd, the Subsidiary.   The growth in the group revenue from R37m to R50,3m is mainly as a result of timing considerations. 
The financial year ended February 2019 consists of a full 12-month period of revenue whereas the financial period ended February 
2018 consists of only a portion of the year’s revenue as the investments were acquired during the course of the February 2018 
financial period.   
 

Operating expenses 
 

Operating expenses for the period are R73.3m.  The growth in group operating expenses from R57.7m to R73,3m is mainly as a 
result of timing considerations. The financial year ended February 2019 consists of a full 12-month period of costs whereas the 
financial period ended February 2018 consists of a portion of the year’s costs, as the investments were acquired during the course 
of the February 2018 financial period.   
 
The February 2019 group operating expenses included the following non-cash items or provisions: 

• Expected credit loss provisions; R4.2m provision for credit losses on loans and receivables as required by the new IFRS 9 
standard was recognised.  

• Depreciation and amortisation; R16m provision for depreciation on property plant and equipment, and amortisation of the 
intangible assets that arose as a result of the prior year acquisition of a subsidiary.  

 

Net cash generated from operations improved from a R31m outflow in the prior year to a R11m inflow in the current year under 

review. 
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Share of profits or losses from associates 
 

The group derives its share of profits or losses from its associates, being the Kouga Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd (“Kouga”) at 6,67% and GRI 
South Africa Wind Steel (Pty) Ltd (“GRI”) at 25%.  There was an increase in share of profits from Kouga from R3,5m in the prior year 
to R5,3m; while GRI share of losses  increased from R10m to R11,2m. GRI has begun processing orders for the REIPPP program 
and it is expected that the results from the company should improve going forward.  
 

Investment valuations and impairments  
 
The valuations process involved an element of judgement and involves estimates. Inputs which were factored in the process included 
the discount rates and the projected cashflows from the underlying investments. Valuations for RustMo1, Kouga and GRI were 
conducted to assess whether there is an indication of impairment.  The valuation for LPS was conducted to determine the fair value 
of the investment to enable a fair value gain or loss adjustment in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
The discount rates that were applied were reflective of prevailing market conditions.  
 
While the impairment assessment at group level indicated no impairment adjustment, the investments at company level were adjusted 
for impairment losses. 
 
The following adjustments were noted as material items in the current year.  They have been separately analysed to provide a better 

understanding of the financial performance. 

 

  Group Company 

  2019 2018 2019 2018 

Material items Notes R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Impairment loss on subsidiaries  (i) - - (42,273) (70,612) 

Fair value gain/(loss) on financial asset at fair value through 

profit and loss 

(ii) 1,654 (25,055) 1,643 (24,857) 

Impairment loss on associates  - (60,299) - - 

 

(i)   Impairment loss on subsidiaries 

Management identified impairment indicators relating to the investments in Red Cap Investments (Pty) Ltd (“Red Cap”), Eurocape 
Renewables (Pty) Ltd (“Eurocape”), Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd and Momentous Technologies (Pty) Ltd (“Momentous”).  The nature of 
some of the investments is that the values wind down over time, in line with the passing of the agreed time in the Power Purchase 
Agreements with Eskom. The investments have been written down to the fair value at reporting date, and an impairment loss of R42m 
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.    
 

Red Cap and Eurocape  
 

Red Cap holds 5.46% and Eurocape holds 1.21% interest in Kouga respectively for a combined interest of 6.67%. Kouga is the only 
significant asset held by Red Cap and Eurocape. The carrying amount of the investment has been written down to the recoverable 
amount of R104m, which was determined by reference to the operations’ value in use.  An impairment loss of R18m (2018: R14m) 
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.   
 
Pele SPV13  

Pele SPV13 holds a 25% interest in GRI Wind Steel South Africa (Pty) Ltd (“GRI”).  The recoverable amount of the investment 

has been recognised at R15m, resulting to an impairment loss of R11m. The impairment loss has been recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.  

Momentous 

Momentous holds 66% interest in RustMo1. Refer to note 5 and 10 for further details on impairment testing for Momentous. An 
impairment loss charge of R13m has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.  
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 (ii)   Fair value gain/(loss) 

In the current year under review a fair value gain of R1.6m was recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income. This was driven by higher revenue projections in line with increased activity of the Avon and Dedisa plants. 

A fair value loss of R25m was recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the prior year on 
Legend Power Solution convertible loan. The fair value loss on the convertible loan was driven by lower revenue projections, in 
comparison to the initial investment projections. 

Expected credit loss provision  
 
In the current year, the group has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014) which replaces IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments and introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of financial assets and 2) impairment for 
financial assets. The significant impact that has been noted for the group is the impairment of financial assets.   
 
Management performed an assessment on the classes of assets which are impacted by the provision of IFRS 9 expected credit 

losses.  The process focused on individual counterparties credit risks in reference to the reported financial assets.  The expected 

credit loss model has been utilised to determine impairment provision. The model required Hulisani company and the group to 

determine allowances for credit losses. The calculation was performed by considering on a discounted basis any cash shortfalls 

the group would incur in the event of various default scenarios for future periods and multiplying these by the probability of each 

scenario occurring. 

 
The financial impact in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income has been highlighted under operating expense 
above.    
 

The following table reflects the operating financial results for the year ended 28 February 2019 compared to the corresponding 

previous financial period: 

 Group 

Audited 

2019 

R’000 

Group 

Audited 

2018 

R’000 

 

 

Variance 

R'000 

 

 

Variance 

(%) 

Revenue 50,371 37,378 12,993 35 

Operating expenses (73,303) (57,699) (15,604) (27) 

Finance income 7,485 10,107 (2,622) (26) 

Finance costs (14,863) (12,298) (2,565) (21) 

Share of losses from associates (5,911) (6,492) 581 9 

Impairment loss - (60,299) 60,299 100 

Fair value adjustment 1,654 (25,055) 26,709 107 

Loss before tax (34,611) (113,381) 78,770 69 

 

3. Share capital  
 

The authorised and issued share capital of the company remained unchanged during the year under review.  At the reporting date, 
the shareholders holding more than 5% were: 
 

Government Employment Pension Fund  35% 

Eskom Pension and Provident Fund  11% 

Alexander Forbes Investment Ltd   6% 

 

 

 



Hulisani Group 

(Registration number 2015/363903/06) 

Trading as Hulisani Limited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2019 

10 
 

4. External auditors 
 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. continued in office as auditors for the company and its subsidiaries for 2019.  
 
Business address:  
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. 
4 Lisbon Lane 
Waterfall City 
Jukskei View 
2090 
 
 
5. Secretary 

 

The company secretary is The Paperclip.  The company secretary was appointed during the financial year under review as the 
services of ER Goodman Secretarial Services (Pty) Ltd ceased.  
 
Business address: 
Broadacres Spaces 
Willow Wood Office Park 
Cnr 3rd Avenue and Cedar Road 
Broadacres Park 
Fourways 
2146 
 
 

6. Directors 
 

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows: 
 

Directors Designation Nationality Changes 

PC Mdoda (Chairman)* Non-executive Independent South African   

NP Gosa* Non-executive Independent South African Resigned 31 December 2018 

DR Hlatshwayo* Non-executive Independent South African   

AV Notshe# Non-executive South African   

HH Schaaf*^ Non-executive Independent German   

MH Zilimbola# Non-executive South African 

Resigned 22 February 2019, 

and reappointed as alternate 

director on 26 February 2019 

B Marx* Non-executive Independent South African   

ME Raphulu (Chief Executive 

Officer) 
Executive South African   

MP Dem (Chief Financial 

Officer) 
Executive South African   

MF Modau (Chief Investment 

Officer) 
Executive South African Resigned 28 February 2019 

 

 

* Independent Non-executive 
 

# Non-independent Non-executive 
 

^ German 
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Independent auditor’s report 
To the Shareholders of Hulisani Limited 

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements    

Our opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of Hulisani Limited (the Company) and its 
subsidiaries (together the Group) as at 28 February 2019, and  its consolidated and separate financial 
performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South 
Africa. 

What we have audited 

Hulisani Limited’s consolidated and separate financial statements set out on pages 18 to 91 comprise: 

● the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 28 February 2019; 

● the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

for the year then ended; 

● the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; 

● the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and 

● the notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, which include a summary of 

significant accounting policies.  

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements section of our report.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.  

 

Independence 

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors 
Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence 
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other 
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
(Parts A and B).  
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Our audit approach 

Overview 

 Overall group materiality 

● Overall group materiality: R4,9 million, which 

represents 0.9% of Total Assets 

Group audit scope 

● The Group comprises of 16 components of which 2 

required a full scope audit due to their financial 

significance and 2 required specified procedures as 

a result of significant account balances and 

transactions within these components. The 

remaining 12 components were financially 

inconsequential and analytical review procedures 

were performed on the account balances and 

transactions. 

 

Key audit matters 

● Valuation of loan to Legend Power Solution 

Proprietary Limited 

● Expected credit losses on loans and receivables 

 

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material 
misstatement in the consolidated and separate financial statements. In particular, we considered 
where the directors made subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting 
estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently 
uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal 
controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that 
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.  

Materiality 

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the consolidated financial statements. 

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, 
including the overall group materiality for the consolidated financial statements as a whole as set out 
in the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope 
of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of 
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole. 

Overall group materiality R4.9 million 

How we determined it 0.9% of Total Assets 

Rationale for the materiality 
benchmark applied 

We chose consolidated total assets as the benchmark 

because, in our view, it is the benchmark against which the 

performance of the Group is most commonly measured by 

users, and is a generally accepted benchmark.  

We chose 0.9% based on our professional judgement, after 

consideration of the range of quantitative materiality 

 

 Materiality 

 Group 
scoping 

 Key 
audit 

matters 
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thresholds that we would typically apply when using total 

assets to compute materiality and taking into account the 

life cycle of the business and current operations.  

 

How we tailored our group audit scope    

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of 
the Group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Group operates. 

 

The Group consists of 16 subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (referred to as ‘components’). 
We performed full scope audits on 2 components due to their financial significance, specified 
procedures on 2 components as a result of significant account balances and transactions within 
these components, and analytical review procedures on the remaining 12 inconsequential 
components. 

In establishing the overall approach to the Group, we determined the extent of the work that 
needed to be performed by us, as the group engagement team, or component auditors from other 
PwC network firms, operating under instruction, in order to issue our audit opinion on the 
consolidated statements of the Group. Where the work was performed by components auditors, 
we determined the level of involvement necessary in the audit work of those components to be 
able to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit evidence has been obtained as a basis for 
our opinion in the Group financial statements as a whole. 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit 
matter 

Valuation of loan to Legend Power 
Solution Proprietary Limited 

Refer to Note 11 Investments at fair 
value through profit or loss and Note 
31 Fair value information. 

This key audit matter relates to both 
the consolidated financial statements 
and the separate financial statements. 

During the previous financial year 
ended 28 February 2018, Hulisani 
Limited issued a participating 
convertible loan to the value of R100 
million to Legend Power Solution 
Proprietary Limited (“LPS”). 

The Company and the Group have 
elected to recognise this loan at fair 
value with gains and losses recognised 
through profit or loss, as reflected in 
the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

Management used the discounted cash 
flow method in determining the fair 
value of the loan. The valuation 

 

We held discussions with management to gain 
an understanding of the process applied to 
calculate the value of the loan. 

We utilised our valuation expertise to assess 
the Company’s and Group’s valuation model. 
We found this to be in line with generally 
accepted valuation methodology. 

The significant judgments and assumptions 
used by management in the valuation were 
subjected to the following procedures: 

● We assessed the reasonableness of 

management’s revenue forecasts through the 

assessment of the base revenue and 

subsequent revenue growth; 

● We inspected the signed power purchase 

agreements and noted that revenue is 

primarily driven by energy generation 

capacity provided; 

● We compared the forecasted revenue to the 

current operational results and found the 

forecast reasonable; 
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required significant judgment to be 
applied by management in the key 
assumptions underlying the valuation. 
These are based on conditions that 
existed at the end of the reporting 
period. 

The valuation of the loan was a matter 
of most significance to our current year 
audit due to the significance of the 
amount to the consolidated and 
separate financial statements and the 
significant judgment applied by 
management particularly in relation to 
revenue projections, the discount rate 
and period of operation. 

 

 

● We compared subsequent revenue growth to 

the targeted consumer price inflation rate 

range as determined by the South African 

Reserve Bank and found it to be consistent; 

● We compared forecasted operational costs to 

current and historical operational results 

and found them to be  reasonable; 

● We assessed the reasonableness of the 

planned period of operation of the plant by 

comparing operating hours of the plant to 

the total operating hours achieved by similar 

plants and we found the operating hours 

used by management to be reasonable; 

● We tested the long-term discount rates used 

by management for reasonability, utilising 

our valuation expertise, by independently 

recalculating the discount rates, taking into 

account independently obtained data. We 

found the discount rates to be reasonable; 

and 

● We tested the mathematical accuracy of the 

model used by management by performing 

an independent calculation. No material 

differences were noted.  

 

Expected credit losses on loans and 
receivables 

Refer to Note 1.25(v) Critical 
accounting estimates and judgments – 
IFRS 9 Expected Credit Losses, Note 9 
Trade and other receivables, Note 12 
Loan receivables, Note 13 Investment 
at amortised cost and Note 30 
Financial instruments and risk 
management. 

This key audit matter relates to the 
consolidated financial statements and 
the separate financial statements 

The Group adopted International 
Financial Reporting Standard 9, 
‘Financial Instruments’ (“IFRS 9”) for 
the first time in the 2019 reporting 
period. This impacted the impairment 
of loans and receivables significantly, 
with a specific focus on the evaluation 
of expected credit losses (ECL). 

At 28 February 2019, group gross loans 
and receivables amounted to R57 
million (company R59.9 million) 
against which a group ECL of R5.9 
million (company R10.4 million) was 
raised, refer to Note 30 – Financial 
instruments and risk management. 

  

We assessed the framework implemented by 
the Group, including the model developed 
and the inputs and assumptions applied by 
management against the requirements of 
IFRS 9. Our audit procedures focused on the 
ECL measurement and included the 
following: 

● We held discussions with management to 

understand their application of economic 

inputs and forward looking information 

into the SICR assessment; 

● For a sample of loans and receivables, we 

performed the following in evaluating SICR: 

○ we held discussions with 

counterparty management to 

understand current results and 

planned future projects; 

○ we inspected counterparty financial 

results to evaluate their financial 

position; and 

○ we inspected loan and receivable 

contracts for repayment terms and 

evaluated days past due against these 

terms. No material differences were 

noted. 

We concurred with management’s 
assessment of SICR. 

● We evaluated management’s processes for 

identifying 12 month and lifetime ECL by 
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In determining the ECL, management 
applied significant judgement and 
made the following assumptions and 
estimates: 

• Evaluation of significant 
increase in credit risk 
(SICR); 

• Assessment of ECL raised 
for 12 month ECL or 
lifetime ECL; and 

• Input assumptions applied 
to estimate the probability 
of default (PD), exposure 
at default (EAD) and loss 
given default (LGD) within 
the ECL measurement. 

We determined the ECL on loans and 
receivables to be a matter of most 
significance to our current year audit 
due to the degree of judgement and 
estimation applied by management in 
determining the ECL. 

 

 

selecting a sample of loans and receivables 

that had ECL to assess whether the stage 

classification was in line with the Group’s 

credit risk assessment. We found the 

categorisation consistent with the Group’s 

credit risk assessment. 

● We assessed the Group’s expected credit 

losses model, focusing on the following 

areas: 

○ we obtained an understanding of the 

methodologies and assumptions used 

by management in the ECL model; 

○ we assessed the alignment of the ECL 

model and its underlying 

methodology with the requirements 

of IFRS 9; 

○ we assessed the input assumptions 

applied within the PD, EAD and LGD 

models and corroborated external 

data inputs to publicly available 

information. 

○ we recalculated the ECL and 

compared the ECL to the calculation 

performed by management and found 

no material differences. 

Based on the procedures described above, we 
found the total credit loss recognised for loans 
and receivables by management to be within 
a reasonable range of our expectation of the 
ECL. 

 

 

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Hulisani Group Trading as Hulisani Limited financial statements for 
the year ended 28 February 2019, which includes the Directors’ report, the Report of the audit and 
risk committee and the Statement of the company secretary as required by the Companies Act of 
South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the other sections of 
the 2019 Hulisani Integrated Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. 
Other information does not include the consolidated and separate financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not and will not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date 
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated and separate financial 
statements 

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and 
separate financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for 
assessing the Group and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and/or the Company or to cease operations, or have 
no realistic alternative but to do so.  

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate 

financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue 

as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and / or Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
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• We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.  

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements   

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, 
we report that PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. has been the auditor of Hulisani Limited for 2 years. 

 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.  

Director: CS Masondo 

Registered Auditor  

Johannesburg  

 

30 May 2019 
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Consolidated and separate statements of financial position  
  Group Company 

  2019 2018 2019 2018 

 Note(s) R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Assets      

Non-current asset      

Property, plant and equipment 6 125,771 133,914 2,275 2,818 

Intangible assets 7,10 145,965 152,830 - - 

Investments in subsidiaries 5 - - 223,223 265,495 

Investments in associates 4 118,829 148,810 - - 

Investment at fair value through profit and loss 11 76,786 75,143 76,786 75,143 

Loans receivable 12 10,127 - 10,127 - 

Investment at amortised cost 13 19,276 - 19,276 - 

Financial asset at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

13 - 8,961 - 8,961 

  496,754 519,658 331,687 352,417 

Current Assets 

Trade and other receivables 9 22,475 29,140 20,235 25,077 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 31,697 35,517 359 10,243 

  54,172 64,657 20,594 35,320 

Total Assets  550,926 584,315 352,281 387,737 

Equity and Liabilities      

Equity      

Stated capital 29 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

Non-distributable reserves  - 773 - 773 

Accumulated loss  (165,093) (122,874) (159,822) (114,548) 

Equity attributable to equity holders of parent  334,907 377,899 340,178 386,225 

Non-controlling interest  30,370 34,625 - - 

  365,277 412,524 340,178 386,225 

Liabilities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Long term borrowings 15 110,895 121,692 - - 

Deferred tax liability 18 39,616 35,814 - - 

  150,511 157,506 - - 

Current Liabilities 

Trade and other payables 14 15,382 3,722 6,442 1,512 

Borrowings 15 11,470 10,563 622 - 

Dividend payable 17 3,247 - - - 

Bank overdraft 8 5,039 - 5,039 - 

  35,138 14,285 12,103 1,512 

Total Liabilities  185,649 171,791 12,103 1,512 

Total Equity and Liabilities  550,926 584,315 352,281 387,737 
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Consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and 

other comprehensive income 
  Group Company 

  2019 2018 2019 2018 

 Note(s) R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Revenue 19 50,371 37,378 36,870 10,473 

Other income  17 977 - 1,113 

Operating gains /(losses) 24 1,593 (25,055) 1,612 (24,857) 

Operating expenses 20 (73,303) (57,699) (43,776) (33,654) 

Impairment loss 23 - (60,299) (42,273) (70,612) 

Operating loss  (21,322) (104,698) (47,567) (117,537) 

Investment income 21 7,485 10,107 6,616 8,999 

Finance costs 22 (14,863) (12,298) (105) - 

Share of the loss from equity accounted investments 4 (5,911) (6,492) - - 

Loss before taxation  (34,611) (113,381) (41,056) (108,538) 

Taxation 25 (3,797) (2,463) - - 

Loss for the year  (38,408) (115,844) (41,056) (108,538) 

Other comprehensive income: 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss: 

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial 

asset 

 

- 773 - 773 

Other comprehensive income for the year  - 773 - 773 

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (38,408) (115,071) (41,056) (107,765) 

Loss for the year attributable to: 

Owners of the parent 

 

(40,475) (116,864) (41,056) (108,538) 

Non-controlling interest  2,067 1,020 - - 

  (38,408) (115,844) (41,056) (108,538) 

 

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:      

Owners of the parent  (40,475) (116,091) (41,056) (107,765) 

Non-controlling interest  2,067 1,020 - - 

  (38,408) (115,071) (41,056) (107,765) 

Basic and diluted loss per share (c) 26 (81) (234) (82) (217) 
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Consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity 
  

 

 

 

Stated capital 

 

 

Non-

distributable 

reserves 

 

 

 

Accumulated 

loss 

 
Total 

attributable to 
equity holders 

to the 

company 

 

 

 

Non-controlling 

interest 

 

 

 

 

Total equity 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Group 

Balance at 01 March 2017 500,000 - (6,010) 493,990 - 493,990 

Loss for the year - - (116,864) (116,864) 1,020 (115,844) 

Other comprehensive income - 773 - 773 - 773 

Total comprehensive loss for the 

year 

- 773 (116,864) (116,091) 1,020 (115,071) 

Dividends paid - - - - (5,027) (5,027) 

Business combinations - - - - 38,632 38,632 

Total contributions by and 

distributions to owners of 

company recognised directly in 

equity 

- - - - 33,605 33,605 

Opening balance as previously 

reported 

500,000 773 (122,874) 377,899 34,625 412,524 

Adjustments 

Change in accounting policy (Note 

2) - (773) (1,744) (2,517) - (2,517) 

Balance at 01 March 2018 as 

restated 

500,000 - (124,618) 375,382 34,625 410,007 

Loss for the year - - (40,475) (40,475) 2,067 (38,408) 

Total comprehensive loss for the 

year 

- - (40,475) (40,475) 2,067 (38,408) 

Disposal of a subsidiary - - - - 272 272 

Dividends - - - - (6,594) (6,594) 

Total contributions by and 

distributions to owners of 

company recognised directly in 

equity 

- - - - (6,322) (6,322) 

Balance at 28 February 2019 500,000 - (165,093) 334,907 30,370 365,277 

Note(s) 29      
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Consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity 
  

Stated capital 

Non-distributable 

reserves 

Accumulated 

loss 

 

Total Equity 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Company     

Balance at 01 March 2017 500,000 - (6,010) 493,990 

Loss for the year - - (108,538) (108,538) 

Other comprehensive income - 773 - 773 

Total comprehensive Loss for the year - 773 (108,538) (107,765) 

Opening balance as previously reported 500,000 773 (114,548) 386,225 

Adjustments 

Change in accounting policy (Note 2) - (773) (4,218) (4,991) 

Balance at 01 March 2018 as restated 500,000 - (118,766) 381,234 

Loss for the year - - (41,056) (41,056) 

Total comprehensive Loss for the year - - (41,056) (41,056) 

Balance at 28 February 2019 500,000 - (159,822) 340,178 

Note(s) 29 
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Consolidated and separate statements of cash flows 
  Group Company 

  2019 2018 2019 2018 

 Note(s) R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Cash flows from operating activities       

 Cash (used in)/generated from operations 28 11,044 (30,533) (29,899) (60,777) 

Net cash from operating activities  11,044 (30,533) (29,899) (60,777) 

Cash flows from investing activities       

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (1,148) (628) (27) (605) 

Sale of property, plant and equipment 6 109 - - - 

Business combinations  - (100,464) - - 

Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries  5 - - - (343,703) 

Acquisition of investments in associates 4 - (223,951) - - 

Subscription of debt investments at amortised cost 13 (12,500) - (12,500) - 

Purchase of financial assets  - (108,188) - (108,188) 

Interest received  4,866 8,000 3,364 6,892 

Dividends received  17,156 8,350 23,652 18,073 

Net cash from investing activities  8,483 (416,881) 14,489 (427,531) 

 

Cash flows from financing activities 

     

Proceeds from borrowings 15 622 - 622 - 

Repayment of borrowings 15 (10,512) (2,697) - - 

Dividends paid 17 (3,347) (5,027) - - 

Interest paid  (15,149) (7,896) (135) - 

Net cash from financing activities  (28,386) (15,620) 487 - 

Total cash movement for the year 

 

(8,859) (463,034) (14,923) (488,308) 

Cash at the beginning of the year  35,517 498,551 10,243 498,551 

Total cash at end of the year 8 26,658 35,517 (4,680) 10,243 
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1. Basis for presentation 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate financial statements are set out 

below. 

1.1 Statement of compliance 

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements of the JSE Limited Listings Requirements and the 

requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. The Listings Requirements require financial statements to be prepared in 

accordance with the framework concepts and the measurement and recognition requirements of International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) and the SAICA financial reporting guides as issued by the accounting practices committee and financial 

pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council. 

1.2 Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, with the exception of financial assets at fair value 

through profit and loss. 

1.3 Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the company and are rounded 

to the nearest thousand rand. 

1.4 Stated capital 

Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as 

a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 

1.5 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  For the purpose of the cash flow statements, total cash at end of the year 

includes bank overdraft.  

1.6 Trade receivables 

Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments, are classified as financial assets subsequently 

measured at amortised cost.   

They have been classified in this manner because their contractual terms give rise, on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and the group's business model is to collect the contractual 

cash flows on trade and other receivables. 

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables, excluding VAT and 

prepayments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date. 

The group measures the loss allowance for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to  12 months expected credit losses 

on assets whose credit risk has not increased significantly and, lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL), which represents 

the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of some of the receivables. 
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1.6   Trade receivables (continued) 

IFRS 9 establishes a three-stage impairment model, based on whether there has been a significant increase in the credit 
risk of a financial asset since its initial recognition. These three-stages then determine the amount of impairment to be 
recognised as expected credit losses (ECL) at each reporting date as well as the amount of interest revenue to be recorded in 
future periods: 
- Stage 1: Credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition – recognise 12 months ECL, and recognise 

interest on a gross basis; 
- Stage 2: Credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition – recognise lifetime ECL, and recognise interest on 

a gross basis; 
- Stage 3: Financial asset is credit impaired (using the criteria currently included in IAS 39) – recognise lifetime ECL, and 

present interest on a net basis (i.e. on the gross carrying amount less credit allowance). 
 

1.7 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items 

(major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain and loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds 

from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values using 

the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is generally recognised in profit or loss, unless the amount 

is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item Depreciation method Useful life 

Buildings   Straight line 20 years 

Plant and machinery Straight line 5 - 20 years 

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 5 - 10 years 

Motor vehicles Straight line 5 years 

Office equipment Straight line 3 - 6 years 

IT equipment and software Straight line 2 - 4 years 

 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate. 

1.8 Intangible assets  

(i)  Goodwill 

Goodwill is measured as described in note 1.11.  Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill 

is not amortised, but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it 

might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include 

the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. 

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash 

generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the 

goodwill arose. 
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1.8   Intangible assets (continued) 

(ii) Customer contracts 

Customer contracts acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite 

useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 

(iii) Research and development 

Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria below as determined by IAS 38 are recognised 

as an expense as incurred. 

An intangible asset arising from the development of an internal project is recognised when: 

 it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use 

 management intends to complete the asset and use or sell it 

 there is an ability to use or sell it 

 it can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits 

 adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset are available, 

and 

 the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured. 

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets, carried at cost less accumulated amortised cost and 

impairment losses, and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use.  

Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible items using the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.  

Amortisation is generally recognised in profit or loss.  

The estimated useful lives for the current year of significant items of intangible assets are as follows: 

Item Useful life 

Development cost 20 years 

Customer contract (Power Purchase Agreement) 20 years 

 

1.9 Investments in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiaries in the company's records are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment. 

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of: 

 the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued 

by the company; plus 

 any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the subsidiary. 
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1.10   Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 

(i) Acquisition of subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control.  Subsidiaries are fully consolidated 

from the date on which control is transferred to the group.  The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business 

combinations by the group (refer to note 1.11). 

(ii) Investments in associates 

Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control.  Investments in associates 

are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. The group’s share of post-

acquisition profits is recognized in profit or loss. 

(iii) Equity Method 

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the 

group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the group’s share of movements in other 

comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and 

joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. The Company's share of equity movements 

in associates are recognised in other comprehensive income. 

When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including any 

other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made 

payments on behalf of the other entity. 

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the 

group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment 

of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure 

consistency with the policies adopted by the group. 

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment in accordance with the impairment policy (refer to 

note 1.14). 

1.11   Business combinations 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments 

or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the: 

 fair values of the assets transferred 

 liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business 

 equity interests issued by the group 

 fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, and 

 fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary. 

Identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited 

exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the 

acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s 

net identifiable assets. 
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1.11   Business combinations (continued) 

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. 

The excess of the 

 consideration transferred, 

 amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and 

 acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity 

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of 

the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a gain on bargain 

purchase. 

1.12   Financial instruments 

Financial instruments held by the group are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. 

Broadly, the classification possibilities, which are adopted by the group, as applicable, are as follows: 

Financial assets which are debt instruments: 

 Amortised cost. (This category applies only when the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, 

to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal, and where the instrument is held under a 

business model whose objective is met by holding the instrument to collect contractual cash flows); or 

 Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification automatically applies to all debt instruments which 

do not qualify as at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income); or 

 Designated at fair value through profit or loss. (This classification option can only be applied when it eliminates or 

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch). 

Financial liabilities: 

 Amortised cost 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way 

purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by 

regulation or convention in the marketplace. 

The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition and measurement of each type of financial instrument held by 

the group are presented below: 

 

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost 

Classification 

Loans receivable (note 12) and investment at amortised cost (note 13) are classified as financial assets subsequently measured 

at amortised cost. 

They have been classified in this manner because the contractual terms of these loans give rise, on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and the group's business model is to collect the 

contractual cash flows on these loans. 

Recognition and measurement 

Loans receivable are recognised when the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the loan. On initial recognition 

the loans are measured at fair value plus transaction costs, if any, and subsequently measured at amortised cost.  
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1.12   Financial instruments (continued) 

 

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

The amortised cost is the amount recognised on the loan initially, minus principal repayments, plus cumulative amortisation 

(interest) using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for 

any loss allowance. 

Impairment 

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on all loans receivable measured at amortised cost.  The 

amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the 

respective loans. 

The group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) when there has been 

a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.  If the credit risk on a loan has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition, then the loss allowance for that loan is measured at 12 month expected credit losses (12 month ECL). 

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a loan. 

In contrast, 12 month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a loan that are 

possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

In order to assess whether to apply lifetime ECL or 12 month ECL, in other words, whether or not there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the group considers whether there has been a significant increase in the risk of a 

default occurring since initial recognition rather than at evidence of a loan being credit impaired at the reporting date or of an 

actual default occurring. 

 

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses 

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the 

loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. 

The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking 

information as described above. The exposure at default is the gross carrying amount of the loan at the reporting date. 

Lifetime ECL is measured on a collective basis in cases where evidence of significant increases in credit risk are not yet available 

at the individual instrument level. Loans are then grouped in such a manner that they share similar credit risk characteristics, such 

as nature of the loan, external credit ratings (if available), industry of counterparty etc. 

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk 

characteristics. 

If the group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous reporting 

period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the group measures 

the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12 month  ECL at the current reporting date, and visa versa. 

An impairment gain or loss is recognised for all loans in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount 

through a loss allowance account.  The impairment loss is included in operating expenses in profit or loss as a movement in credit 

loss allowance (note 20).  
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1.12   Financial instruments (continued) 

Derecognition 

Any gains or losses arising on the derecognition of a loan receivable is included in profit or loss in other operating income/expense.  

 

(ii) Investments in debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

Classification 

Certain investments in debt instruments are classified as mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss. These investments do 

not qualify for classification at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income because either the contractual 

terms of these instruments do not give rise, on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

the principal outstanding, or the objectives of the group business model are met by selling the instruments rather than holding 

them to collect the contractual cash flows. 

The group has designated certain investments in debt instruments as at fair value through profit or loss. The reason for the 

designation is to reduce or eliminate an accounting mismatch which would occur if the instruments were not classified as such.  

Recognition and measurement 

Investments in debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised when the group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument. The investments are measured, at initial recognition and subsequently, at fair value. 

Transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss. 

Fair value gains or losses are included in operating gains/(losses) (note 24). Details of the valuation policies and processes are 

presented in note 31. 

Interest received on debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss are included in investment income (note 21). 

Derecognition 

Any gains or losses arising on the derecognition of a loan receivable is included in profit or loss in other operating income/expense.  
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1.13   Tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable 

income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax 

losses. 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 

assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not 

recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects 

neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted 

or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset 

is realised, or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will 

be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.  A deferred tax asset is recognised for unuti lised 

tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax 

losses can be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and 

when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the 

entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the 

liability simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other 

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in 

equity, respectively.  

1.14 Impairment of assets 

The group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the group also: 

 tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment annually 

by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed during the annual 

period and at the same time every period. 

 tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually. 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not 

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which 

the asset belongs is determined. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit 

or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.Goodwill acquired in a business combination 

is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected 

to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to 

those units or groups of units. 
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1.14   Impairment of assets (continued) 

Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill 

is monitored for internal management purposes and is not larger than an operating segment as defined by paragraph 5 of IFRS 

8 Operating Segments before aggregation. 

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying amount 

of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the following order: 

 first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and 

 then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. 

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for 

assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of 

those assets are estimated. 

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed 

the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill is 

recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation 

increase. 

1.15   Bank overdraft 

Bank overdrafts are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 

rate method. 

1.16   Trade payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of financial year which are 

unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented 

as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their 

fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

When trade payables are denominated in a foreign currency, the carrying amount of the payables are determined in the foreign 

currency. The carrying amount is then translated to the Rand equivalent using the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. 

Any resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the operating gains/(losses) (note 24). 

Trade and other payables denominated in foreign currencies 

When trade payables are denominated in a foreign currency, the carrying amount of the payables are determined in the foreign 

currency. The carrying amount is then translated to the Rand equivalent using the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. 

Any resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the operating gains /(losses) (note 24). 

 

1.17   Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. 

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and 

the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other 

income or finance costs. 
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1.18   Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 

 the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and 

 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 

reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity 

settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement 

shall not exceed the amount of the provision. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a 

provision. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised separately are 

subsequently measured at the higher of: 

 the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and  

 the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 16. 

 

1.19   Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 

to be paid if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by 

the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 

1.20   Revenue from contracts with customers 

An entity shall account for a contract with a customer that is within the scope of this standard only when all of the following criteria 
are met: 

• the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other customary business 
practices) and are committed to perform their respective obligations; 

• the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred; 

• the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred; 

• the contract has commercial substance (i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows is expected to change 
as a result of the contract); and 

• it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the goods or services that 
will be transferred to the customer. In evaluating whether collectability of an amount of consideration is probable, an entity 
shall consider only the customer’s ability and intention to pay that amount of consideration when it is due. The amount of 
consideration to which the entity will be entitled may be less than the price stated in the contract if the consideration is variable 
because the entity may offer the customer a price concession 

 

The group earns revenue from providing sale of electricity. Electricity transfer to the customer is regulated by the power purchase 

agreement. Performance obligation to deliver electricity is satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously receives and 

consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity performs. Therefore, revenue is recognised over time, 

in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.   
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1.20   Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)  

Revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract and there is no recognised significant financing 

component.  The group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue is recognised in 

the amount to which the group has a right to invoice. The customer is invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable 

when invoiced. 

Hulisani company earns revenue in the form of dividends, therefore is not in the scope of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers. 

1.21   Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the operating decision-makers, 

identified as the group’s executive committee. The executive committee reviews the group’s internal reporting in order to assess 

performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the 

group’s executive committee which are used to make strategic decisions and are disclosed in note 27. 

1.22   Leases 

Operating leases – lessee 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group as lessee are classified 

as operating leases (note 32). Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 

charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

1.23    Borrowing costs 

There are no qualifying assets for capitalisation of borrowing costs.  All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in 

the period in which they are incurred. 

1.24   Dividends 

Dividend income or expense is recognised when the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no 

longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed or received at the end of the 

reporting period. Dividends receivable is raised for expected inflow of cash and dividends payable is raised for expected outflow 

of cash.   

1.25   Critical accounting estimates and judgement 

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual 

results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the group’s accounting policies.  Estimates and judgements 

are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that 

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The areas involving significant estimates or judgements are: 

(i) Investment in associates decision.  

 
Hulisani holds 100% of issued shares in Red Cap Investments (Pty) ("Red Cap”) Ltd and Eurocape Renewables (Pty) Ltd 
("Eurocape").  Red Cap and Eurocape hold 5.46% and 1.21% interest in Kouga Wind Farm (RF) (Pty) Ltd respectively, combined 
to 6.67%. 
 
Hulisani management made a judgement regarding the classification of this acquisition to an investment in associates as Hulisani 
has a directorship representation in the board of the investee. The board representation indicates a level of significant inf luence 
by Hulisani. 
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1.25   Critical accounting estimates and judgement (continued) 

 
(ii) Estimated fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. 

Hulisani issued a convertible loan to Legend Power Solutions. The group has designated the financial asset at fair value through 

profit and loss.  The fair value is determined by using the discounted cash flow method by discounting the dividend income.  The 

expected cash flows are discounted using an appropriate discount rate. In determining the recoverable amount, the group made 

key assumptions on base revenue from underlying plant operations, discount rate and period of operation. The loan participates 

in 9% of distributable profits available to LPS’ shareholders. On maturity the loan will convert to 9% of equity in LPS. 

(iii) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries. 

Management identified impairment indicators relating to the investments in Red Cap Investments (Pty) Ltd (‘Red Cap”), Eurocape 

Renewables (Pty) Ltd (“Eurocape”), Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd and Momentous Technologies (Pty) Ltd (“Momentous”).  The nature of 

the investments is that the values wind down over time, in line with the passing of the agreed time in the Power Purchase 

Agreements with Eskom.  The expected cash flows are discounted using an appropriate discount rate. In determining the 

expected cash flows, the group made key assumptions on forecasted revenue and the discount rate. 

(iv) Goodwill impairment. 

The carrying value of goodwill in the group is R45m and arose on acquisition of a majority stake in RustMo1 Solar Farm (Pty) Ltd 

(“RustMo1”). RustMo1 is considered to be a separately identifiable cash generating unit and goodwill has been allocated to this 

cash generating unit. The recoverable amount of goodwill was based on a value in use discounted cash flow method. In 

determining the recoverable amount, the group made key assumptions on forecasted revenue and the discount rate.  

(v)   IFRS 9 Expected Credit Losses 

Hulisani management made a judgement regarding the assessment of receivables for impairments using reasonable and 

supportable information that was available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 to determine 

the credit loss allowance of the respective items at the date they were initially recognised and at statement of financial position 

date.    

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The group uses 
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the group’s history, 
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.  
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2. Changes in accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards on a basis 

consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised standards. 

Application of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

In the current year, the group has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014) and the related consequential 

amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments and introduces new requirements for: 

• the classification and measurement of financial assets and 

• impairment for financial assets.  

Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the group's financial statements are described below. 

The group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9. 

Classification and measurement of financial assets 

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the group has assessed its existing financial assets and financial liabilities in 

terms of the requirements of IFRS 9) is 01 March 2018. Accordingly, the group has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to 

instruments that have not been derecognised as at 01 March 2018 and has not applied the requirements to instruments that have 

already been derecognised as at 01 March 2018. Comparatives in relation to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 

01 March 2018 have not been restated.  Instead, cumulative adjustments to retained earnings have been recognised in retained 

earnings at 01 March 2018.   

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost 

or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 

characteristics of the financial assets. 

The measurement requirements are summarised below: 

• Debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that 

have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

• Debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows and to 

sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding, are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

• All other debt investments and equity investments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, unless 

specifically designated otherwise. 

• Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income 

are subject to new impairment provisions using an expected loss model. This contrasts the incurred loss model of IAS 39. 

• The directors reviewed and assessed the group's existing financial assets as at 01 March 2018 based on the facts and 

circumstances that existed at that date and concluded that the initial application of IFRS 9 has had the following impact on 

the group's financial assets as regards to their classification and measurement: 
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 

Debt instruments 

(i) Reclassification of Ignite preference shares from available-for-sale to amortised cost 

In line with IFRS 9 requirements management assessed the classification of the preference shares with reference to the business 

model of the group. The financial asset meets both criteria of hold to collect business model test; and solely payments of principal 

and interest (SPPI) contractual cash flow characteristics test, as such it has been classified as subsequently measured at 

amortised cost under IFRS 9. This resulted in a reclassification of the Ignite preference shares from available-for-sale to 

investment at amortised cost. The impact of the reclassification is noted as a change in accounting policy, and the fair value 

reserve of R773k recognised in the prior year has been recycled to opening retained earnings.   

The main effects resulting from this reclassification are as follows:  
 

Group and Company  

Financial assets – 01 March 2018 Fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

(Available-for-sale) 

Investment at 

amortised cost 

 R’000 R’000 

Closing balance 28 February 2018 – IAS 39 8,961 - 

Reclassify preference shares from available-for-sale to 

amortised cost 

(8,188) 8,188 

Opening balance 01 March 2018 – IFRS 9 773 8,188 

 

The impact of these changes on equity is as follows:  
 

 Effect on Available-for-sale 

Reserves 

Effect on retained 

earnings 

 R’000 R’000 

Opening balance – IAS 39 773 - 

Reclassify preference shares from available-for-sale to 

amortised cost 

(773) (773) 

Opening balance 01 March 2018 – IFRS 9 - (773) 
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 

(ii) Impairment of financial assets 

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model as opposed to an incurred credit 

loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires the group to account for expected credit losses and changes 

in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial 

assets. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised. 

Specifically, IFRS 9 requires the group to recognise a loss allowance for expected credit losses on debt investments subsequently 

measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, lease receivables, contract assets and loan 

commitments and financial guarantee contracts to which the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 apply. In particular, IFRS 9 

requires the group to measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit 

losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, or if the financial instrument 

is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset. On the other hand, if the credit risk on a financial instrument has not 

increased significantly since initial recognition (except for a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset), the group is 

required to measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 months expected credit losses. 

IFRS 9 also provides a simplified approach for measuring the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses 

for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables in certain circumstances. 

As at 01 March 2018, the directors reviewed and assessed the group's existing financial assets and amounts due from customers  

for impairment using reasonable and supportable information that was available without undue cost or effort in accordance with 

the requirements of IFRS 9 to determine the credit risk of the respective items at the date they were initially recognised, and 

compared that to the credit risk as at 01 March 2018 and 28 February 2019.  Refer to note 30 for further details.   
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 

Impact on the financial statements  
 

IFRS 9 was adopted without restating comparative information. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new impairment rules are therefore not reflected in a restated 
balance sheet as at 28 February 2018 but are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 March 2018.  
 

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been included. As a result, the sub-totals and 

totals disclosed cannot be reconciled from the numbers provided.  

 

Group  

Balance sheet (Extract) 28 February 2018 IFRS 91 01 March 2018 Restated 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Trade and other receivables 29,140 (1,744) 27,396 

Total assets 29,140 (1,744) 27,396 

Retained earnings 29,140 (1,744) 27,396 

Total equity 29,140 (1,744) 27,396 

 

1 This consists of expected credit losses. 
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 

Company 

Balance sheet (Extract) 28 February 2018 IFRS 92 01 March 2018 Restated 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Trade and other receivables 25,077 (4,218) 20,859 

Total assets 25,077 (4,218) 20,859 

Retained earnings 25,077 (4,218) 20,859 

Total equity 25,077 (4,218) 20,859 

 

2 This consists of expected credit losses. 
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 

Reconciliation of the reclassifications and remeasurements of financial assets as a result of adopting IFRS9 

The following table presents a summary of the financial assets as at 01 March 2018. The table reconciles the movement of financial assets from their IAS 39 measurement categories and 

into their new IFRS 9 measurement categories. "FVPL" denotes "fair value through profit or loss". 

 

Group 

Previous measurement New measurement category: IFRS 9 

 IAS 39 FVPL – designated Amortised cost 

Previously Fair value through profit 

or loss (designated):  

   

Convertible loan 75,143 75,143 - 

Previously Loans and receivables:     

Trade and other receivables 29,140 - 29,140 

Previously Available for sale:     

Redeemable preference shares 8,961 - 8,961 

 113,244 75,143 38,101 
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 

Company 

Previous measurement New measurement category: IFRS 9 

 IAS 39 FVPL – designated Amortised cost 

Previously Fair value through profit 

or loss (designated):   

   

Convertible loan 75,143 75,143 - 

Previously Loans and receivables:     

Trade and other receivables 25,077  25,077 

Previously Available for sale:      

Redeemable preference shares 8,961 - 8,961 

 109,181 75,143 34,038 
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2. Changes in accounting policies (continued) 

Application of IFRS15 Revenue from contracts with customers 

In the current year, the group has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (as revised in April 2016) and the 

related consequential amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 

Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from 

Customers and SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. 

IFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal 

with specific scenarios. However, the group derives revenue from the sale of electricity over time, to a single external customer, 

Eskom.   Revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract.  The group recognises revenue when the 

amount of revenue can be reliably measured.  Revenue is recognised in the amount to which the group has a right to invoice. 

The customer is invoiced on a monthly basis and consideration is payable when invoiced. 

Therefore, adoption of IFRS 15 did not have a significant impact on revenue recognition. 

Hulisani as a separate entity earns revenue in the form of dividends, therefore is not in the scope of IFRS 15 Revenue from 

Contracts with Customers. 
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3. New Standards and Interpretations 

3.1 Standards and interpretations not yet effective 

The group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are 

mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 March 2019 or later periods: 

 

 

Standard/ Interpretation: 

Effective date: 

Years beginning on or after 

 

Expected impact: 

 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 01 January 2019 This new interpretation standard sets out 

how to determine the accounting tax 

position when there is uncertainty over 

income tax treatments. The impact of the 

interpretation will be assessed and applied 

to uncertain tax position in future 

 IFRS 16 Leases 01 January 2019 The new standard provides a 
comprehensive model to identify lease 
arrangements and the treatment thereof in 
the financial statements of both lessees 
and lessors. Hulisani has no material 
operating leases which will have to be 
brought onto the balance sheet in terms of 
the new standard. 

 Amendments to IAS 28, ‘Investments in 

associates and joint ventures’ – long-term 

interests in associates and joint ventures. 

01 January 2019 The amendments clarified that companies 
account for long-term interests in an 
associate or joint venture, to which the 
equity method is not applied, using IFRS 9. 
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4. Investments in associates 

Material associates 

The table below provides a summary of the investments the group holds in associates.  A detailed breakdown is provided for 

each investment. 

 Group 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Balance at the beginning of the period 148,810 - 

Addition - 223,951 

Impairment loss - (60,299) 

Loss attributable to Hulisani Limited (5,911) (6,492) 

Dividends received (24,070) (8,350) 

Balance at the end of the period 118,829 148,810 

 

Summarised financial information of material associates 

(a)  Kouga Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd 

Hulisani holds 100% of issued shares in Red Cap Investments (Pty) ("Red Cap”) Ltd and Eurocape Renewables (Pty) Ltd 

("Eurocape").  Red Cap and Eurocape hold 5.46% and 1.21% interest in Kouga Wind Farm (RF) (Pty) Ltd respectively, combined 

to 6.67%.  Red Cap and Eurocape are investment holding companies. 

 

 Group 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Balance at the beginning of the period 122,312 - 

Addition - 141,450 

Impairment loss - (14,314) 

Profit attributable to Hulisani Limited 5,318 3,526 

Dividends received (24,070) (8,350) 

Balance at the end of the period 103,560 122,312 
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4. Investments in associates (continued) 

 (b)   GRI Wind Steel SA (Pty) Ltd 

On 27 July 2017 the Company acquired 50% of the share capital in Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd (“Pele SPV13”) for a cash consideration 

of R41.25m and subscribed for preference shares of R41.25m to Pele SPV198 (Pty) Ltd (“Pele SPV198”). The transaction resulted 

in an acquisition of a 25% stake in GRI Wind Steel South Africa (Pty) Ltd (“GRI”) by Pele SPV13.  The preference share 

subscription agreement includes a requirement that Pele SPV198 pledges its shares held in Pele SPV13 to Hulisani until the 

preference share funding is repaid.  Therefore, until such time the preference shares have been repaid risks and rewards 

associated to Pele SPV198 investment in Pele SPV13 have transferred to Hulisani.  In addition, at the end of the reporting period 

Pele SPV198 has an option to acquire the 50% interest in Pele SPV13 once the preference share funding has been repaid.  The 

value of the option however has been determined to be immaterial.  

 

 Group 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Balance at the beginning of the period 26,498 - 

Addition - 82,501 

Impairment loss - (45,985) 

Loss attributable to Hulisani Limited (11,229) (10,018) 

Balance at the end of the period 15,269 26,498 

 

 

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Kouga GRI 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 
R'000 

2019 

                     R'000 

2018 
R'000 

Revenue 466,033 418,479  187,302 61,555 

Other income and expenses (254,247) (282,170)  (247,734) (117,209) 

Profit before tax 211,786 136,309 (60,432) (55,654) 

Tax expense (79,417) (35,194) 18,380 15,583 

Profit (loss) from continuing operations 132,369 101,115 (42,052) (40,071) 

Other comprehensive income - - (2,863) - 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) 132,369 101,115 (44,915) (40,071) 

Profit/(loss) attributable to Hulisani 8,829 6,744 (11,229) (10,018) 

Intangibles arising from acquisition amortised (3,511) (3,218) - - 

 5,318 3,526 (11,229) (10,018) 
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4. Investments in associates (continued) 

 

 

Summarised Statement of Financial Position Kouga GRI 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Assets 

Non-current 1,350,969 1,436,226 311,671 334,681 

Current 433,503 473,721 379,797 43,524 

Total assets 1,784,472 1,909,947 691,468 378,205 

Liabilities  

Non-current 1,522,657 1,526,987 198,599 161,619 

Current 135,404 28,228 448,787 127,587 

Total liabilities 1,658,061 1,555,215 647,386 289,206 

     

Total net assets 126,411 354,732 44,082 88,999 

     

Reconciliation of net assets to equity 

accounted investments in associates 

Kouga GRI 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Interest in associates at percentage ownership 8,432 23,661 11,021 22,250 

Goodwill 52,699 52,699 50,233 50,233 

Intangible asset arising from acquisition (net of tax) 56,743 60,266 - - 

Impairment loss (14,314) (14,314) (45,985) (45,985) 

Carrying value of investment in associate 103,560 122,312 15,269 26,498 
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5. Investment in subsidiaries 

The following table lists the entities which are controlled by the group, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries. 

Company 

Name of company 2019  

R'000 

2018  

R'000 

Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd 15,153 26,498 

Momentous Technologies (Pty) Ltd 104,180 116,681 

Red Cap Investments (Pty) Ltd 85,072 100,156 

Eurocape Renewables (Pty) Ltd 18,813 22,156 

Other investments 5 4 

 223,223 265,495 

 

 

 Momentous 

Technologies 

(Pty) Ltd  

Red Cap 

Investments 

(Pty) Ltd 

Eurocape 

Renewables 

(Pty) Ltd 

 

Pele SPV13 

(Pty)Ltd* 

Other investments 

in 

subsidiaries 

 

 

Total 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Balance at 01 March 2018 116,681 100,156 22,156 26,498 4 265,495 

Additions - - - - 1 1 

Impairment (12,501) (15,084) (3,343) (11,345) - (42,273) 

 104,180 85,072 18,813 15,153 5 223,223 

Balance at 01 March 2017 - - - - - - 

Cost/Additions 119,752 115,828 25,622 82,501 4 343,707 

Pre-acquisition dividends (3,071) (3,709) (820) - - (7,600) 

Accumulated impairment/impairment - (11,963) (2,646) (56,003) - (70,612) 

 116,681 100,156 22,156 26,498 4 265,495 

 

*  A subsidiary of Pele Green (Pty) Ltd, Pele SPV198 (Pty) Ltd entered into an agreement with Hulisani to jointly subscribe for 

ordinary shares in Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd. Hulisani subscribed for cumulative preference shares in Pele SPV198 (Pty) Ltd valued 

at R41.25m, for the entity's funding of the ordinary shares subscription in Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd. 

The substance of the transaction is that Pele SPV198’s sole purpose is to hold the investment in Pele SPV13, and for the duration 

of the preference share funding the entity is required to pledge investment in Pele SPV13 to Hulisani, and also required to utilise 

dividends accruing from the investment in Pele SPV13 to settle the funding. Therefore, the assessment of the transaction indicates 

that Hulisani has an in substance shareholding percentage of 100% in Pele SPV13. Hulisani is not entitled to appoint all the 

directors of Pele SPV13, but until the preference shares are repaid, can direct how the non-Hulisani directors make decisions. 

Therefore, Hulisani has power and is exposed to variable returns, which is the dividends from Pele SPV13 (in substance GRI) 

and can use its power to direct the relevant activities to affect its return. 

 

 

 



Hulisani Group 

(Registration number 2015/363903/06) 

Trading as Hulisani Limited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2019 

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements 

48 

 

5. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary 

During the financial year Hulisani disposed of its investment in Optimise Advisory Services (Pty) Ltd subsidiary.   Optimise held a 

49% interest in Gromac Agricultural holdings (Pty) Ltd, which has been derecognised by the group subsequent the sale.   

(b) Impairment 

Management identified impairment indicators due to dividends received from investments in Red Cap Investments (Pty) Ltd (‘Red 
Cap”), Eurocape Renewables (Pty) Ltd (“Eurocape”), Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd and Momentous Technologies (Pty) Ltd 
(“Momentous”).  The nature of some of the investments is that the values wind down over time, in line with the passing of the 
agreed time in the Power Purchase Agreements with Eskom. The investments have been written down to the fair value at reporting 
date, and an impairment loss of R42m has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.    
 

Red Cap and Eurocape  
 

Red Cap holds 5.46% and Eurocape holds 1.21% interest in Kouga respectively for a combined interest of 6.67%. Kouga is the 
only significant asset held by Red Cap and Eurocape. The carrying amount of the investment has been written down to the 
recoverable amount of R104m, which was determined by reference to the operations’ value in use.  An impairment loss charge 
of R18m has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.   
 
The key inputs to the discounted cash flow model are as follows:  

• Discount rate – 13.7%  

• Base revenue – Base revenue is determined using the energy rate inflated at CPI over the term of the Power Purchase 
Agreement.  The base revenue in the cash flow projections, year ending 28 February 2020, is R536 million. 

 
The model is most sensitive to changes in base revenue and discount rate.  

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 5% decrease in base revenue results in a decrease in the recoverable amount, 
and further impairment of R8m;  

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 1% increase in discount rate results in a decrease in the recoverable amount, and 
further impairment of R7m. 
 

Pele SPV13  

Pele SPV13 hold a 25% stake in GRI Wind Steel South Africa (Pty) Ltd (“GRI”).  The recoverable amount of the investment 

has been recognised at R15m, resulting to an impairment loss of R11m. The impairment loss has been recognised in the 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.  

The key inputs to the discounted cash flow model are as follows:  

• Discount rate – 18.5%  

• Base revenue – The base revenue in the cash flow projections, year ending 28 February 2020, is R701 million. 
 
The model is most sensitive to changes in base revenue and discount rate.  

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 5% decrease in base revenue results in a decrease in the recoverable amount, 
and further impairment of R4m;  

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 1% increase in discount rate results in a decrease in the recoverable amount, and 
further impairment of R5m. 
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5. Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 

Momentous 

Momentous holds 66% interest in RustMo1.  An impairment loss charge of R8m has been recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income.   
 
The key inputs to the discounted cash flow model are as follows: 

• Discount rate – 13.2% 

• Base revenue - Base revenue is determined using the energy rate inflated at CPI over the term of the Power Purchase 
Agreement. The base revenue in the cash flow projections, year ending 28 February 2020, is R51.6 million. 

 
The model is most sensitive to changes in base revenue and discount rate.  

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 5% decrease in base revenue results in a decrease in the recoverable amount, 
and further impairment of R9m;  

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 1% increase in discount rate results in a decrease in the recoverable amount, and 
further impairment of R6m. 
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6. Property, plant and equipment 

    

Group     

  2019   2018  

 Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 

Carrying value  Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 

Carrying value  

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Land 2,212 - 2,212 2,212 - 2,212 

Plant and machinery 135,496 (14,831) 120,665 135,025 (6,356) 128,669 

Furniture and fixtures 2,810 (854) 1,956 2,783 (434) 2,349 

Motor vehicles 595 (40) 555 248 (56) 192 

Office equipment 375 (123) 252 372 (60) 312 

IT equipment and software 330 (199) 131 278 (98) 180 

Total 141,818 (16,047) 125,771 140,918 (7,004) 133,914 

       

Company       

 Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 

Carrying value  Cost Accumulated 

depreciation 

Carrying value  

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Furniture and fixtures 2,791 (851) 1,940 2,781 (434) 2,347 

Office equipment 349 (116) 233 349 (58) 291 

IT equipment and software 294 (192) 102 278 (98) 180 

Total 3,434 (1,159) 2,275 3,408 (590) 2,818 
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Group - 2019 

  Opening 

balance 

 

Additions 

 

Disposals 

 

Depreciation 

 

Total 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Land  2,212 - - - 2,212 

Plant and machinery 128,669 471 - (8,475) 120,665 

Furniture and fixtures 2,349 27 - (420) 1,957 

Motor vehicles 192 595 (139) (93) 555 

Office equipment 312 3 - (63) 252 

IT equipment and software 180 52 - (101) 131 

 133,914 1,148 (139) (9,152) 125,771 

 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Group - 2018 

   

 

Opening 

balance 

 

 

 

Additions 

Additions 
through 

business 

combination

s 

 

 

 

Disposals 

 

 

 

Depreciation 

 

 

 

Total 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Land & Building - - 2,212 - - 2,212 

Plant and machinery - - 135,025 - (6,356) 128,669 

Furniture and fixtures 2,292 471 2 - (416) 2,349 

Motor vehicles - - 248 - (56) 192 

Office equipment 323 49 - - (60) 312 

IT equipment and software 141 108 - - (69) 180 

 2,756 628 137,487 - (6,957) 133,914 

 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Company - 2019 

  Opening balance Additions Depreciation Total 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Furniture and fixtures 2,347 10 (417) 1,940 

Office equipment 291 - (58) 233 

IT equipment and software 180 17 (95) 102 

 2,818 27 (570) 2,275 

 

 

 

 



Hulisani Group 

(Registration number 2015/363903/06) 

Trading as Hulisani Limited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2019 

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements 

52 

 

6. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Company - 2018 

  Opening balance Additions Depreciation Total 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Furniture and fixtures 2,292 471 (416) 2,347 

Office equipment 323 26 (58) 291 

IT equipment and software 141 108 (69) 180 

 2,756 605 (543) 2,818 

 

Property, plant and equipment encumbered as security 

The following assets have been encumbered as security for the secured long-term borrowings in note 15: 

 Group 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Property, plant 

and equipment:       

- Land and building 2,212 2,212 

- Plant and machinery 120,664 128,669 

- Other assets 620 215 

Total non-current assets pledged as security 123,496 131,096 

Total assets pledged as security 123,496 131,096 

 

A register containing the information required by regulation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations is available for inspection 

at the registered office of the company.     
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7.  Intangible assets 

 

Group 

  2019   2018  

 Cost Accumulated 

amortisation 

Carrying 

value 

Cost Accumulated 

amortisation 

Carrying 

value 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Development cost 25,030 (2,661) 22,369 25,030 (1,140) 23,890 

Goodwill 44,761 - 44,761 44,761 - 44,761 

Customer contract 88,188 (9,353) 78,835 88,188 (4,009) 84,179 

Total 157,979 (12,014) 145,965 157,979 (5,149) 152,830 

 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group - 2019 

  Opening 

balance 

 

Amortisation 

 

Total 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Development cost 23,890 (1,521) 22,369 

Goodwill 44,761 - 44,761 

Customer contract 84,179 (5,344) 78,835 

 152,830 (6,865) 145,965 

 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group - 2018 

   

 

Opening 

balance 

 

 

 

Additions 

Addition 

through 

business 

combinations 

 

 

 

Amorti

sation 

 

 

 

Total 

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Development cost -  25,030 (1,140) 23,890 

Goodwill - 44,761 - - 44,761 

Customer contract -  88,188 (4,009) 84,179 

 - 44,761 113,218 (5,149) 152,830 

 

Refer to note 10 for further details on goodwill.  
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8. Cash and cash equivalents  

 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

 

 Group Company 

   2019 2018  2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000  R '000 R '000 

Bank balances 20,425  14,056 - 45 

Short-term deposits 11,272 21,461 359 10,198 

Bank overdraft (5,039) - (5,039) - 

 26,658 35,517 (4,680) 10,243 

Current assets 31,697 35,517 359 10,243 

Current liabilities (5,039)  (5,039) - 

 26,658 35,517 (4,680) 10,243 

 

9. Trade and other receivables 

 

  

 Group Company 

  2019 2018  2019 2018 

  R '000 R '000  R '000 R '000 

Financial instruments: 

Trade receivables 9,761 14,143 - 5,000 

Trade receivables - related parties 5,851 12,667 5,851 11,901 

Loans to group companies   6,532 5,612 

Loss allowance (994) - (5,478) - 

Trade receivables at amortised cost 14,618 26,810 6,905 22,513 

Other receivables 191 2,169 - 2,519 

Dividends receivable 6,914 - 13,218 - 

Non-financial instruments: 

VAT 54 - - - 

Prepayments 698 161 112 45 

Total trade and other receivables 22,475 29,140 20,235 25,077 
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9. Trade and other receivables (continued) 

Exposure to credit risk 

Trade receivables inherently expose the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial loss if customers 

fail to make payments as they fall due. 

The group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments.  

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows: 

Group 2019 2019 2018 2018 

Expected credit loss rate: 

Estimated 
gross 

carrying 

amount at 

default 

 
 

Loss 
allowance 

 

Estimated 
gross 

carrying 

amount at 

default 

 
 

Loss 
allowance 

 

Current 21,876 (702) - - 

Past due  841 (292) - - 

Total 22,717 (994) - - 

     

Company 2019 2019 2018 2018 

Expected credit loss rate: 

Estimated 
gross 

carrying 

amount at 

default 

 
 

Loss 
allowance  

 

Estimated 
gross 

carrying 

amount at 

default 

 
 

Loss 
allowance  

 

Not past due 24,951 (5,186) - - 

Past due 650 (292) - - 

Total 25,601 (5,478) - - 

 

Reconciliation of loss allowances 

The following table shows the movement in the loss allowance (12 month expected credit losses) for trade and other 

receivables: 

 

                     Group Company 

        2019 2018  2019 2018 

      R '000 R '000  R '000 R '000 

 

Adjustments upon application of IFRS 9 (994) - (994) - 

Opening balance in accordance with IFRS 9 (994) - (994) - 

Provision raised on new trade receivables - - (4,484) - 

Closing balance (994) - (5,478) - 
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10. Goodwill 

 

Group 

 

Reconciliation of goodwill - Group – 2019 

 

 

    Opening balance Total 

    R '000 R '000 

Goodwill    44,761 44,761 

    44,761 44,761 

 

 

Reconciliation of goodwill - Group - 2018 

  

Opening 

balance 

Additions 
through 

business 

combinations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total 

   R '000 R '000 R '000 

Goodwill    - 44,761 44,761 

    - 44,761 44,761 

 

The goodwill relates to the acquisition of the RustMo1 Solar Farm (Pty) Ltd (“RustMo1”) and it is mainly attributable to the 

deferred tax liability recognised on the fair value of intangible assets.  

Impairment of goodwill 

For impairment testing goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the RustMo1 CGU, which is also an 

operating and a reportable segment. 

The carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the CGU: 

 RustMo1 Total  

 R’000 R’000 

Goodwill 44,761 44,761 

 44,761 44,761 

 

 

 

  2019     2018  

 Cost Accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying value Cost Accumulated 

impairment 

Carrying 

value 

     R '000     R '000     R '000   R '000     R '000     R '000 

Goodwill 44,761 - 44,761 44,761 - 44,761 

Total 44,761 - 44,761 44,761 - 44,761 
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10. Goodwill (continued) 

The group performed its annual impairment test at 28 February 2019. The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to 

which goodwill has been allocated to is based on value in use discounted cash flow method. No impairment loss was recognised 

on goodwill in the period under review. 

The recoverable amount has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections from financial 

model approved by senior management covering the remaining period of the Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”).  Refer to 

note 5 for key inputs to the discounted cashflow model.  

 
11. Investments at fair value through profit or loss 

Convertible loan to Legend Power Solution (Pty) Ltd 

Hulisani Limited issued a convertible loan to Legend Power Solution (Pty) Ltd (“LPS”), a company with an underlying investment 

in Avon and Dedisa Peaking Power. The loan participates in 9% of distributable profits available to LPS shareholders and will  

convert to a 9% equity stake in LPS.  The loan will convert when senior funding in LPS has been fully repaid to the lender. 

Management has elected to measure the financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Designated at fair value through profit or loss:  

Convertible loan to Legend Power Solution 76,786 75,143 76,786 75,143 

 76,786 75,143 76,786 75,143 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Balance at the beginning of the period 75,143 - 75,143 - 

Additions - 100,000 - 100,000 

Fair value gain/(loss) 1,643 (24,857) 1,643 (24,857) 

Balance at 28 February 2018 76,786 75,143 76,786 75,143 

 

 (i)  Classification 

The loan is classified as a financial asset at fair value through profit and loss. 

 (ii)  Fair value loss and Significant estimates 

Refer to Note 31 for further information on valuation inputs.  A fair value gain of R1.6m was recognised in the statement of 

comprehensive income during the period under review on Legend Power Solution convertible loan.  
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12. Loans receivables 

(i)  Loan to Pele Green Energy (Pty) Ltd 

The loan to Pele Green Energy (Pty) Ltd ("Pele Green") is issued for a period of 5 years, repayable annually on the anniversary 

of the issue date.  The interest rate is set at prime rate plus 2%.  

(ii)  Loan to Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd 

Hulisani has a receivable to the value of R5m to Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd (“Ignite”), the loan bears no interest and has 

no repayment terms.  

Loans receivable are presented at amortised cost, which is net of loss allowance, as follows: 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Pele Green Energy (Pty) Ltd 5,877 - 5,877 - 

Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd 4,250 - 4,250 - 

 10,127 - 10,127 - 

 

Exposure to credit risk 

Loans receivable inherently exposes the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial loss if counterparties 

fail to make payments as they fall due. 

Credit loss allowances 

The following tables set out the carrying amount, loss allowance and measurement basis of expected credit losses for loans 

receivable as at the end of the financial period: 

Group and Company - 2019     

 

Instrument 

Basis of loss 

allowance 

Gross Carrying 

amount 

Loss 

allowance 

Amortised 

cost 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Pele Green Energy (Pty) Ltd 12m ECL 6,679 (802) 5,877 

Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd 12m ECL 5,000 (750) 4,250 

  11,679 (1,552) 10,127 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Hulisani Group 

(Registration number 2015/363903/06) 

Trading as Hulisani Limited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2019 

Notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements 

59 

 

13.  Investment at amortised cost 

  Preference shares to Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd 

Hulisani Limited has invested in preference share issued by Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd ("Ignite") with a subscription value 

of R20.7m. The preference shares are redeemable in 5 years, and the interest rate is set at prime plus 2.35%.    Refer to note 

2 for detail on the reclassification of the investment. 

The investment is presented at amortised cost, which is net of loss allowance, as follows: 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd 19,276 8,961 19,276 8,961 

 19,276 8,961 19,276 8,961 

 

Exposure to credit risk 

Investment at amortised cost inherently exposes the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial loss if 

counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due. 

Credit loss allowances 

The following tables set out the carrying amount, loss allowance and measurement basis of expected credit losses for the 

investment as at the end of the financial period: 

Group and company - 2019     

 

Instrument 

Basis of loss 

allowance 

Gross 

Carrying amount 

Loss 

allowance 

Amortised 

cost 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Ignite Energy Projects (Pty) Ltd 12m ECL 22,678 (3,402) 19,276 

  22,678 (3,402) 19,276 
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14.  Trade and other payables 

               Group  Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Financial instruments:      

Trade payables 3,778 962 3,565 305 

Other payables 4,525 580 - - 

Leave provision 290 208 236 208 

Accrued audit fees 825 581 825 581 

Other accrued expenses 5,723 1,244 1,816 418 

Non-financial instruments:      

VAT 241 147 - - 

 15,382 3,722 6,442 1,512 

 

Trade payables are unsecured and are paid within 30 days of recognition.  The carrying amounts of trade and other 

payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. 

 

15. Borrowings 

 

 

          Group        Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Held at amortised cost 

Secured 

Nedbank loan 60,735 65,978 - - 

IDC loan 61,008 66,277 - - 

Unsecured 

Lead Africa Capital loan 
622 - 622 - 

 122,365 132,255 622 - 

Split between non-current and current portions 

Non-current liabilities 110,895 121,692 - - 

Current liabilities 11,470 10,563 622 - 

 122,365 132,255 622 - 
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15. Borrowings (continued) 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Balance at the beginning of the period 132,255 - - - 

Arising from acquisition of subsidiary - 134,952 - - 

Addition 622 - 622 - 

Repayments (10,512) (2,697) - - 

 122,365 132,255 622 - 

 

IDC loan 

The IDC loan is secured, bears interest at 11.60% and is repayable in semi-annual instalments over a term of 14 years. 

Nedbank loan 

The Nedbank loan is secured, bears interest at 11.65% and is repayable in semi-annual instalments over a term of 14 years. 

Lead Africa Capital loan 

The Lead Africa loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime plus 1% and was repaid on 31 March 2019. 

(i)  Assets pledged as security 

See note 6 for all assets pledged as security 

 

16. Contingencies 

Momentous Technology (“MT”) is the original developer of RustMo1 project and initially held 15% of the shares in RustMo1. 

Momentous acquired a further 51% in RustMo1 in the prior year from Evolution One en Commandite Partnership.  The relationship 

between inter alia Evolution and MT in respect of their shareholding in Rustmo1 was regulated by an Amended and Restated 

Shareholders Agreement (the “SHA”), dated 4 November 2012.  The SHA entitled Evolution to subscribe for additional shares in 

RustMo1 should the RustMo1 project Internal Rate of Return (“IRR”) be lower than the agreed IRR on the Adjustment Date (being 

16 November 2016). Having undertaken its own calculations, Evolution was of the view that it did not achieve the minimum project 

agreed IRR and sought to enforce its right to subscribe for shares in RustMo1 on the Adjustment Date.   

 

On 2 November 2018, Evolution initiated arbitration proceedings at the Arbitration Foundation Southern Africa to enforce its rights.  

Management has engaged external legal counsel and believes it has a strong case and no provision is required at this point. 
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17. Dividend payable 

Dividends are due by RustMo1 Solar Farm (Pty) Ltd to the Non-controlling shareholders. 

 Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Balance at the beginning of the period - - - - 

Dividends declared 6,594 5,027 - - 

Dividends paid (3,347) (5,027) - - 

Balance at the end of the period 3,247 - - - 

 

18. Deferred tax 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Deferred tax liability 39,616 35,814  -   - 

    

  Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 R'000 2018 R'000  

Assessed loss (34,768) (30,626)   (17,510) (8,265) 

Accelerated tax depreciation on assets 31,052 33,174 - - 

Prepayment - (33) - - 

Fair value/impairment adjustments 3,367 4,569   (24,566 ) (21,385) 

Provisions (1,216)  (1,638) - 

Total deferred tax  (1,565) 7,084 (43,714) (29,650) 

Unrecognised deferred tax asset 41,181 28,730 43,714 29,650 

Total deferred tax liability 39,616 35,814 - - 
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18.  Deferred tax (continued) 

 

Reconciliation of deferred (tax asset) / liability 

 Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019   2018  

R'000 R'000 

At the beginning of year 7,084 (1,683) (29,650) (1,683) 

Acquisition of a subsidiary - 33,356 - - 

Tax loss (4,142) (2,834) (9,246) (6,582) 

Accelarated tax depreciation on assets (2,122) (2,628) - - 

Fair value/impairment adjustments (1,202) (20,188) (3,181) (21,385) 

Borrowings - capitalised transaction costs - 1,149 - - 

Provisions (1,216) - (1,638) - 

Prepayments 33 (88) - - 

Total deferred (tax asset) / liability (1,565) 7,084 (43,714) (29,650) 

Unrecognised deferred tax asset 41,181 28,730 43,714 29,650 

 39,616 35,814 - - 

 

Unrecognised deferred tax asset 

Unused tax losses not recognised as deferred tax 

assets (124,171) (109,379) (62,536) (29,518) 

 

 

The group is not recognising deferred tax asset in certain subsidiaries because management has assessed the probability of 

having taxable income in the foreseeable future against which the deferred tax asset will be utilised to be low. 

 

 

19.  Revenue 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Sale of electricity 50,371 37,378 - - 

Other revenue     

Dividends received  - - 36,870 10,473 

 50,371 37,378 36,870 10,473 
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20.  Revenue (continued) 

 
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers  
 

The group derives revenue from the sale of electricity over time, to a single external customer, Eskom.  
 
(b) Dividends received were paid by Hulisani’s subsidiaries, Momentous Technologies (Pty) Ltd, Red Cap Investments (Pty) Ltd 

and Eurocape Renewables (Pty) Ltd.  
 

20. Operating expenses 

Included in operating expenses is the following: 

 

21.  Investment income 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Investment income:     

Investments in financial assets:      

Bank and other cash 1,779 8,000 277 6,892 

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss 3,087 2,107 3,087 2,107 

Other financial assets 2,619 - 3,252 - 

Total interest income 7,485 10,107 6,616 8,999 

 Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Amortisation 6,865 5,149 - - 

Audit fees 2,292 911 2,059 865 

Consulting fees 8,804 12,152 5,862 7,137 

Marketing and branding 711 508 711 508 

Corporate services  842 1,453 842 1,453 

Depreciation 9,152 6,957 570 543 

Donations 634 398 27 - 

Bad debts - - 3,140 - 

Expected credit losses 4,203 - 6,213 - 

Non-executive directors' fees 3,391 1,800 3,391 1,800 

Legal fees 4,065 4,150 3,526 4,150 

Management fees 892 1,299 - - 

Operation &Maintenance contract 2,523 2,398 - - 

Rent expense 1,901 1,626 1,637 1,626 

Secretarial services  896 455 896 455 

Site service fees 1,566 2,281 - - 

Staff cost 14,310 8,989 12,641 8,989 

Success fees - 3,796 - 3,796 

Other expenses 4,072 2,336 1,653 1,792 
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22.  Finance costs 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Borrowings 14,708 12,240 - - 

Bank overdraft 152 58 102 - 

Current borrowings 2 - 2 - 

Other 1 - 1 - 

Total finance costs 14,863 12,298 105 - 

 

 

23.  Impairment loss 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Material impairment losses recognised      

Investment in associates - 60,299 - - 

Investment in subsidiaries - -            42,273 70,612 

 - 60,299  42,273 70,612 

 

Refer to note 5 for further details on impairment loss at company level and note 4 for prior year impairments at group level. 

24.  Operating gains (losses) 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000  R '000 

Gains/ (losses) on disposals:     

Property, plant and equipment (30) - - - 

Foreign exchange gains/ (losses):     

Net foreign exchange loss (31) - (31) - 

Fair value gains/ (losses):     

Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss 11 (198) - - 

Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss 1,643 (24,857) 1,643 (24,857) 

 1,654 (25,055) 1,643 (24,857) 

Total other operating gains/ (losses) 1,593 (25,055) 1,612 (24,857) 
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25. Income tax 

Major components of the tax expense 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Current 

Local income tax - current period (5) 5 - - 

Deferred 

Deferred tax – current period 3,802 2,458 - - 

Income tax expense 3,797 2,463 - - 

 

Reconciliation of the tax expense 

Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate. 

Applicable tax rate 28.00 % 28.00 % 28.00 % 28.00 % 

Profit before tax multiplied by the standard tax rate (9,691) (31,747) (11,496) (30,390) 

Non-deductible expenditure 711 564 10 10 

Non-deductible capital losses - 1,818 8,279 - 

Losses from associates 1,655 - - - 

Capital loss taxed at CGT 92 4,780 888 5,345 

Exempt local dividend (1,421) - (11,745) (2,932) 

Deferred tax asset not recognised 12,451 27,048 14,064 27,967 

Income tax expense 3,797 2,463 - - 

 

26.   Earnings per share 

Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings is as follows: 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Basic and diluted loss per share (cents) (81) (234)  (82) (217) 

Basic and diluted headline loss per share (cents) (81) (113)  2 (76) 

 

The calculation of earnings per share for the year ended 28 February 2019 was based on the loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of Hulisani Limited, and a weighted average number of ordinary shares. 
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26.   Earnings per share (continued) 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year to 
headline earnings     

Profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent (40,475) (116,864) (41,056) (108,538) 

Adjustments:     

Effects of remeasurements for subsidiaries, net of NCI and tax: 14 60,299 42,273 70,612 

Impairment loss - 60,299 42,273 70,612 

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 20 - - - 

Tax effect (6) - - - 

Headline earnings (40,461) (56,565) 1,217 (37,926) 

     

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ('000) 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

 

27. Segmental information 

The group’s executive committee, consisting of the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer and the chief investment officer, 

examines the group’s performance both from the nature of investment perspective and has identified the following reportable 

segments of its business: 

• RustMo1:  This is a material subsidiary of Hulisani. RustMo1 generates and sells electricity 

• Kouga:  This is an investment Hulisani has significant influence over. Kouga generates and sells electricity 

• GRI: This is an investment Hulisani has significant influence over. GRI is a manufacturing plant of towers used in energy 

production. 

• LPS: Hulisani participates in 9% of the distributable profits of the investee. LPS has invested in the energy production 

industry.  

• Other:  The segment represents activities within the holding company. This includes investment holding entities in the 

group.  

The executive committee uses dividends received/receivable to assess the performance of the operating segments. Information 

about the segments' revenue and assets is received by the executive committee on a monthly basis. 
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27. Segmental information (continued) 

2019 

Revenue Separately disclosable items 

  

Revenue 

 

Net 

profit 

Non-cash 

items in 

comprehensive 

income 

 

Depreciation 

and 

amortisation 

 

Interest 

income 

 

 

Finance cost 

 

Dividends 

received 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

RustMo1 50,371 11,119 (19) (15,448) 1,497 (14,759) 12,800 

Kouga - 5,318 - - - - 24,070 

GRI - (11,229) - - - - - 

LPS - 4,730 1,643 - 3,087 - - 

Other/Eliminations - (48,346) (31) (569) 2,901 (105) - 

 50,371 (38,408) 1,593 (16,017) 7,485 (14,864) 36,870 

 

2018 

Revenue Separately disclosable items 

  

Revenue 

 

Net 

profit 

Non-cash 

items in 

comprehensive 

income 

 

Depreciation 

and 

amortisation 

 

Interest 

income 

 

 

Finance cost 

 

Dividends 

received 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

RustMo1 37,378 7,415 - (11,563) 1,085 (12,298) 9,758 

Kouga - (10,788) (14,314) - - - 8,350 

GRI - (56,003) (45,985) - - - - 

LPS - (22,750) (24,857) - 2,107 - - 

Other/Eliminations - (33,718) - (543) 6,915 - - 

 37,378 (115,844) (85,156) (12,106) 10,107 (12,298) 18,108 

 

Segment assets and liabilities  

2019 

 Equity 

accounted 

investments 

Property, 

plant and 

equipment 

Financial 

assets at fair 

value 

Financial 

assets at 

amortised 

cost 

Intangible 

assets 

Current 

assets 

Total 

liabilities 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

RustMo1 - 123,497 - - 145,965 41,805 175,259 

Kouga 103,560 - - - - - - 

GRI 15,269 - - - - - - 

LPS - - 76,786 - - - - 

Other/Eliminations - 2,275 - 29,403 - 12,367 10,390 

Total 118,829 125,772 76,786 29,403 145,965 54,172 185,649 
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27.  Segmental information (continued) 

 

2018 

 Equity 

accounted 

investments 

Property, 

plant and 

equipment 

Financial 

assets at fair 

value 

Intangible 

assets 

Current 

assets 

Total 

liabilities 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

RustMo1 - 131,096 - 152,830 33,928 169,725 

Kouga 122,312 - - - - - 

GRI 26,498 - - - - - 

LPS - - 75,143 - 2,107 - 

Other/Eliminations - 2,818 8,961 - 28,622 2,066 

Total 148,810 133,914 84,104 152,830 64,657 171,791 

       

 

28.  Cash (used in)/generated from operations 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Loss before taxation (34,611) (113,381) (41,056) (108,538) 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 16,017 12,106 570 543 

Losses on disposals of assets  30 - - - 

Losses on foreign exchange 31 - 31 - 

Loss from equity accounted investments 5,911 6,492 - - 

Dividends received - - (36,870) (10,473) 

Interest income (7,485) (10,107) (6,616) (8,999) 

Finance costs 14,863 12,298 105 - 

Fair value (gains) losses (1,654) 25,055 (1,643) 24,857 

Other non-cash items 2,255 1,198 2,255 1,198 

Impairment losses - 60,299 42,273 70,612 

Expected credit losses and provisions 9,402 - 9,353 - 

Changes in working capital:  

Trade and other receivables (5,866) (17,711) (976) (22,620) 

Trade and other payables 12,151 (6,782) 2,675 (7,357) 

 11,044 (30,533) (29,899) (60,777) 
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29. Stated capital 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Authorised 

1000 000 000 Ordinary shares of no par value ('000) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Total 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 

Reconciliation of number of shares issued:  

Reported as at the beginning of the period 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

In issue at the end of the period 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Issued Ordinary 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

In issue at the end of the period 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 

 

(i)  Ordinary Shares 

At 28 February 2019, the authorised share capital comprised 1 billion no par value shares.  The Company has issued share capital 

of 50 million shares of no par value at an issue price of R10 per share. 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share 

at meetings of the company. All shares rank equally with regard to the company’s residual assets. 

All the shares in issue are fully paid up. 

(ii) Dividends 

No dividends were declared or paid by the Company. 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management 

Categories of financial instruments 

Categories of financial assets 

Group - 2019 

 

 

Note(s) 

 Fair value 

through profit 

or loss 

Designated 

Amortised 

cost Total 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 

Loans receivable 12 - 10,127 10,127 

Investment at fair value through profit 

or loss 

 11 76,786 - 76,786 

Investment at amortised cost 13  19,276 19,276 

Trade and other receivables                 9 - 21,723 21,723 

Cash and cash equivalents  8 - 31,697 31,697 

  76,786 82,823 159,609 

 

Group - 2018 

   

Fair value 

through profit or 

loss Designated 

Fair value 

through other 

comprehensive 

income 

 

 

 

Amortised 

cost 

 

 

 

Total 

  Note(s)  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Loans receivable 12 -  - - 

Investment at fair value through 

profit or loss 

11,13 75,143 8,961 - 84,104 

Trade and other receivables          9 31  28,948 28,979 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 -  35,517 35,517 

  75,174 8,961 64,465 148,600 

 

 

Company - 2019 

  Fair value 

through profit 

or loss 

Designated 

 

 

Amortised 

cost 

 

 

 

Total 

 Note(s) R’000 R’000 R’000 

Loans receivable 12 - 10,127 10,127 

Investments at fair value 11 76,786 - 76,786 

Investment at amortised cost 13 - 19,276 19,276 

Trade and other receivables 9 - 20,123 20,123 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 - 359 359 

  76,786 49,885 126,671 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)  

 

Company - 2018    

 

  

 

 

 

 

Fair value 

through 

profit or 

loss 

Designated 

Fair value 

through other 

comprehensive 

income 

 

 

 

Amortised 

cost 

 

 

 

 

Total 

 Note(s) R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Investments at fair value 11,13 75,143 8,961 - 84,104 

Trade and other receivables 9 -  25,032 25,032 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 -  10,243 10,243 

  75,143 8,961 35,275 119,379 

 

 

 

Categories of financial liabilities 

Group – 2019 

 

  

Amortised 

cost Total 

 Note(s) R’000 R’000 

Trade and other payables 14 15,141 15,141 

Borrowings 15 122,365 122,365 

Dividend payable 17 3,247 3,247 

Bank overdraft 8 5,039 5,039 

  145,792 145,792 

 

Group – 2018 

  

Amortised 

cost Total 

 Note(s) R’000 R’000 

Trade and other payables 14 2,368 2,368 

Borrowings 15 132,256 132,256 

  134,624 134,624 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

Company - 2019 

 

 

 

Amortised 

cost Total 

 Note(s) R’000 R’000 

Trade and other payables 14 6,442 6,442 

Borrowings 15 622 622 

Bank overdraft 8 5,039 5,039 

  12,103 12,103 

 

 

Company - 2018 

 

Amortised 

cost Total 

 Note(s) R’000 R’000 

Trade and other payables 14 304 304 

  304 304 

 

Capital risk management 

The group’s objectives when managing capital are to 

 safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 

benefits for other stakeholders, and 

 maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return 

capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

 

Financial risk management 

Overview 

The group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

 Credit risk; 

 Liquidity risk; and 

 Market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk). 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 

obligations. 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

Credit risk arises from the risk that trade receivables may default and result in a loss to the entity. 

(i)  Risk management 

Credit exposure associated with cash and cash equivalents is limited as the group deposits cash with major banks with high quality 

credit standing. 

 (ii)   Credit quality 

The group was required to revise its impairment methodology under IFRS 9 for each of the classes of assets. The impact of the 
change in impairment methodology is reflected on retained earnings.  
 

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was 
immaterial.  
 

(iii)   Impairment methodology 

The expected credit loss model has been utilised to determine impairment provision in terms of impairment requirements of 

IFRS 9. The model required Hulisani and the group to determine allowances for credit losses and the calculation was performed 

by considering on a discounted basis any cash shortfalls the group would incur in the event of various default scenarios for 

future periods and multiplying these by the probability of each scenario occurring. 

The employed approach took the following inputs into consideration: 

• Exposure at Default (EAD); the amount of the financial asset that is exposed to credit risk. 

• Probability of Default (PD); the likelihood that a counterparty to a financial asset will default over an observed period. 

• Loss Given Default (LGD); the value of a financial asset that lender will lose if a borrower default 

The expected credit loss is a function of EAD, PD and LGD. 

The group measured the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (lifetime ECL) when there has been 

a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.  If the credit risk on a loan has not increased significantly since initial 

recognition, then the loss allowance for that loan is measured at 12 month expected credit losses (12 month ECL). 

 
Management performed an assessment on the classes of assets which are impacted by the provision of IFRS 9 expected credit 
losses.  The process focused on individual counterparties credit risks in reference to the reported financial assets.  The outcome 
of the assessment classified the assets in the following categories, low risk, no significant increase in risk and significant increase 
in risk.  The assets which have been categorised to have a low risk were identified to have immaterial impairment loss, while assets 
with no significant increase in risk have been measured at 12 month expected credit loss, and significant increase in risk assets 
measured at lifetime expected credit loss.  
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is presented in the table below: 

 

Group   2019   2018  

  Gross 

carrying 

amount 

Credit loss 

allowance 

Amortised 

cost / fair 

value 

Gross 

carrying 

amount 

Credit loss 

allowance 

Amortised 

cost / fair 

value 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Trade and other receivables 9 22,717 (994) 21,723 28,979 - 28,979 

Loans receivable 12 11,679 (1,552) 10,127 - - - 

Investment at amortised cost 13 22,678 (3,402) 19,276 - - - 

  57,074 (5,948) 51,126 28,979 - 28,979 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 31,697 - 31,697 35,517 - 35,517 

Investment at fair value through 

profit or loss 

11 76,786 - 76,786 75,143 - 75,143 

Investment at fair value through 

Other comprehensive income 

13 - - - 8,961 - 8,961 

  108,483 - 108,483 119,621 - 119,621 

  165,557 (5,948) 159,609 148,600 - 148,600 

 

 

Company   2019   2018  

  Gross 

carrying 

amount 

Credit loss 

allowance 

Amortised 

cost / fair 

value 

Gross 

carrying 

amount 

Credit loss 

allowance 

Amortised 

cost / fair 

value 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Trade and other receivables 9 25,601 (5,478) 20,123 25,032 - 25,032 

Loans receivable 12 11,679 (1,552) 10,127 - - - 

Investment at amortised 

cost 

13 22,678 (3,402) 19,276 -  - 

  59,958 (10,432) 49,526 25,032 - 25,032 

Cash and cash equivalents 8 359 - 359 10,243 - 10,243 

Investment at fair value 

through profit or loss 

11 76,786 - 76,786 75,143 - 75,143 

Investment at fair value 

through Other 

comprehensive income 

13 - - - 8,961 - 8,961 

  77,145 - 77,145 94,347 - 94,347 

  137,103 (10,432) 126,671 119,379 - 119,379 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

Group 

   Cumulative additional loss 

allowance recognised on: 

Items existing on 01 March 

2018 that are subject to the 

impairment provisions of 

IFRS 9: 

Note  

Credit risk attributes at 01 March 2018 and 28 

February 2019 

      

 

28 February 

2019 

 

 

01 March 2018 

Trade and other receivables 9 While there is some risk of non-payment the group 

has considered the risk to be low as there hasn’t 

been non-payment to date, therefore trade and other 

receivables do not to have a significant increase in 

risk, and impairment provision is determined as 12 

months expected credit losses.  

994 994 

Loans receivable at amortised 

cost 

12 While there is some risk of non-payment the group 

has considered the risk to be low as there hasn’t 

been non-payment to date, therefore loans 

receivable at amortised cost do not to have a  

significant increase in risk, and impairment provision 

is determined as 12 months expected credit losses. 

1,552 750 

Investment at amortised cost 13 While there is some risk of non-payment the group 

has considered the risk to be low as there hasn’t 

been non-payment to date, therefore investment at 

amortised cost does not to have a significant 

increase in risk, and impairment provision is 

determined as 12 months expected credit losses. 

3,402 - 

Total additional loss allowance    5,948 1,744 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)      

 

Company 

   Cumulative additional loss 

allowance recognised on: 

Items existing on 01 March 

2018 that are subject to the 

impairment provisions of 

IFRS 9: 

 

 

Note 

 

Credit risk attributes at 01 March 2018 and 28 

February 2019 

 

28 February 

2019  

 

01 March 

2018 

Trade and other receivables 9 The company considered some trade and other 

receivables not to have an increase in risk, and 

therefore the impairment provision is determined as 

12 months expected credit losses, while other 

receivables have been assessed to have an 

increased credit risk and the impairment provision 

was determined at lifetime expected credit losses. 

5,478 3,468 

Loans receivable at amortised 

cost 

12 The company considered loans receivable at 

amortised cost not to have an increase in risk, and 

therefore the impairment provision is determined as 

12 months expected credit losses. 

1,552 750 

Investment at amortised cost 13 The company considered the investment at 

amortised cost not to have an increase in risk, and 

therefore the impairment provision is determined as 

12 months expected credit losses. 

3,402 - 

Total additional loss allowance   10,432 4,218 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)      

 

 Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Trade receivables 

Counterparties with external ratings 

CCC+ 9,761 9,276 - - 

Related parties and key management personnel 5,851 5,616 5,851 15,234 

Other parties - 13,485 - 4,186 

 15,612 28,377 5,851 19,420 

Loans and other receivables     

Related parties  6,679 - 26,429 5,612 

Other third parties 12,105 602 5,000 - 

 18,784 602 31,429 5,612 

Cash at bank and short-term bank deposit  

BB - 11,131 - 10,243 

BB+ 31,697 24,386 359 - 

 31,697 35,517 359 10,243 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 
income 
Counterparties without external credit ratings - 8,961 - 8,961 

 - 8,961 - 8,961 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 
Counterparties without external credit ratings 76,783 75,143 76,786 75,143 

 76,783 75,143 76,786 75,143 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Counterparties without external credit ratings 

 

22,678 

 

- 

 

22,678 

 

- 

 22,678 - 22,678 - 

 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will be unable to meet a financial commitment as it falls due.  Prudent liquidity risk 

management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to 

meet obligations when due. The group manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and expected 

dividends from underlying project companies. 

The maturity profile of contractual cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities, and financial assets held to mitigate the risk, 

are presented in the following table. The cash flows are undiscounted contractual amounts.  
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

Group - 2019 

  
  Less than 1 

year 

1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years  Over 5 

years 

 Total Carrying 

amount 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Non-current liabilities        

Borrowings 15 - 43,444 64,932 75,576 183,952 110,895 

Current liabilities        

Trade and other payables 14 15,382 - - - 15,382 15,382 

Borrowings 15 21,712 - - - 21,712 11,470 

Dividend payable 17 3,247 - - - 3,247 3,247 

Bank overdraft 8 5,039 - - - 5,039 5,039 

  45,380 43,444 64,932 75,576 229,332 146,033 

 

Group - 2018 

 

 

      

Non-current liabilities        

Borrowings 15 - 34,881 94,773 76,115 205,769 121,692 

        

Current liabilities        

Trade and other payables 14 2,368 - - - 2,368 2,368 

Borrowings 15 25,537 - - - 25,537 10,563 

  27,905 34,881 94,773 76,115 233,674 134,623 

 

Company – 2019 

  Less than 1 

year 

1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years  Over 5 

years 

 Total Carrying 

amount 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Current liabilities        

Trade and other payables 14 6,442 - - - 6,442 6,442 

Borrowings 15 622 - - - 622 622 

Bank overdraft 8 5,039 - - - 5,039 5,039 

  12,103 - - - 12,103 12,103 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

 

Company - 2018 

 

  Less than 1 

year 

1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years  Over 5 

years 

 Total Carrying 

amount 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Current liabilities        

Trade and other payables 14 1,512 - - - 1,512 1,512 

  1,512 - - - 1,512 1,512 

 

(i)  Financial commitments 

The group has no undrawn borrowing facilities available at the end of the reporting period. 

Interest rate risk 

Management continuously monitors the group’s exposure to interest rate volatility and determines the interest rate policy in this 

regard. Short-term debtors and creditors are not exposed to interest rate risk. As a consequence, the entity is exposed to market 

risk in respect of the fair value of its fixed rate financial instruments. 

The group’s debt carries fixed interest rates. Interest rate swaps have been entered into in the past to achieve an appropriate mix 

of fixed and floating rate exposure. The interest rate swaps are not designated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes and 

thus any changes to the interest rate at the date of reporting would affect profit or loss but, as these gains or losses are not 

available for distribution, they would be transferred to a fair value reserve.  

The interest rate exposure of the group to interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows: 

Interest rate swaps 

Certain interest rate swaps have been entered into in order to mitigate against the effect of changes in interest rates.  All swaps 

which existed in the prior year expired during the period under review. 

     Group 

Nominal values     2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Floating rate instrument 

Effect of interest rate swaps 

    

- 107,179 

Fixed rate instruments 

Financial liabilities 

    

(122,365) (132,255) 

     (122,365) (132,255) 

Effect of interest rate swaps     - 107,179 

     (122,365) (25,076) 
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30. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 

Group - 2018 

Nominal rate 

Commencement 

date Maturity 

Nominal amount 

(R’000) 

Fair value of 

contract 

(R’000) 

Nedbank Limited 7.19 30/11/2017 31/05/2018  27,118  956 

Nedbank Limited 6.94 31/05/2018  30/11/2018  26,472  878 

Nedbank Limited 6.95 30/11/2017 31/05/2018  27,118  (924) 

Nedbank Limited 6.95 31/05/2018 30/11/2018  26,471  (879) 

   107,179  31 

 

31. Fair value information 

Fair value hierarchy 

The table below analyses assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The different levels are defined as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the group can access at measurement 

date.   The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are included 

in level 1. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.   

If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.  This is the case for unlisted equity securities. 

Levels of fair value measurements 

The following presents the group’s financial instruments measured and recognised at fair value at 28 February 2019.  The group 

has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards. 

Level 3 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Recurring fair value measurements 

Assets  

    

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit 

(loss)  

    

Convertible loan  76,786 75,143 76,786 75,143 

Total  76,786 75,143 76,786 75,143 
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31. Fair value information (continued) 

 

Transfers of assets and liabilities within levels of the fair value hierarchy 

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. 

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities measured at level 3 

 

   
Opening 
balance 

 
 

Purchases 

Gains/(losses) 
recognised in 

profit(loss) 

 
Closing 
balance 

 Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Group – 2019      
Assets 
Financial assets 
designated at fair value 
through profit (loss) 

 

 

 

 

11 

    

Convertible loan  75,143 - 1,643 76,786 

Total  75,143 - 1,643 76,786 

 

      
Group – 2018      
Assets      
Financial assets 
designated at fair value 
through profit (loss) 

 

 

 

11 

    

Convertible loan  - 100,000 (24,857) 75,143 

Total  - 100,000 (24,857) 75,143 
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31. Fair value information (continued) 

 

 

   
 

Opening balance 

 
 

Purchases 

Gains/(losses) 
recognised in 

profit(loss) 

 
Closing 
balance 

 Notes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Company – 2019      
Assets 
Financial assets 
designated at fair value 
through profit (loss) 

 

 

 

11 

    

Convertible loan  75,143 - 1,643 76,786 

Total  75,143 - 1,643 76,786 

 

      
Company – 2018      
Assets      
Financial assets designated at 
fair value through profit (loss) 

11     

Convertible loan  - 100,000 (24,857) 75,143 

Total  - 100,000 (24,857) 75,143 

 

Information about valuation techniques and inputs used to derive level 3 fair values Convertible loan 

The key unobservable inputs, together with the weighted average range of probabilities, are as follows:                                                      

                                                                                                                             
 Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value 

 High         Low 

Discount rate The higher the discount rate the 

lower the fair value 

The lower the discount rate the 

higher the fair value 

 Base revenue from plant operation The higher the base revenue the higher 

the fair value 

The lower the base revenue the 

lower the fair value 

Period of operation The longer the period the higher the fair 

value  

The shorter the period the 

lower the fair value 
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31. Fair value information (continued) 

 

The fair value is determined by using the discounted cash flow method by discounting the dividend income. LPS has underlying 

investment in the Avon and Dedisa open cycle gas/diesel turbine (OCGT) plants. The dividend income is based on the operational 

results of the Avon and Dedisa plant. 

The key inputs to the discounted cash flow model of the underlying operational plants are as follows: 

1. Discount rate – 13.6% 

2. Base revenue from plant operation – Base revenue is determined using the Power Purchase Agreement capacity rate 

for Dedisa and for Avon. The base revenue in the cash flow projections of Dedisa and Avon, year ending 28 February 

2020, is R2.5 billion. 

3. Period of operation - 30 years 

The model is most sensitive to changes in base revenue from operations, discount rate and period of operation. 

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 5% decrease in base revenue results in a further reduction in fair value of 

R14m;  

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 1% increase in discount rate results in a further reduction in fair value of R8m. 

• If all assumptions remained unchanged, a 5 year reduction in the period of operation results in a further reduction in fair 

value of R9m. 

 

Valuation processes applied by the Group 

The group finance department obtains input from independent valuation experts in performing valuations of financial assets 

required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. The valuations expert communicates directly with the chief 

financial officer (CFO). 

The convertible loan is valued by using the Dividend Discount Model. The discount rates used for the valuations are the prevailing 

market rates at the time of the valuations. 

The group conducts valuations twice a year, at the interim financial reporting period and also at the year-end reporting period. 
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32. Commitments 

(a)  Non-cancellable operating leases 

Hulisani leased the office under a non-cancellable operating lease expiring in 3 years from the reporting date. The lease terms 

include an escalation clause with no renewal rights. 

 Group Company 

 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation 
to non-cancellable operating leases are payable as 
follows: 
   -  Within one year 1,630 1,496 1,630 1,496 

   -  Later than one year but not later than 5 years 3,663 5,247 3,663 5,247 

 5,293 6,743 5,293 6,743 

Rental expense relating to operating leases Minimum 

lease payments 1,923 1,626 1,637 1,626 

 1,923 1,626 1,637 1,626 
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33. Related parties 
` 

         

Entity Relationships 

Refer to note 5 Subsidiaries 

Pele Green Energy (Pty) Ltd Pele Green SPV 198 (Pty) Ltd Joint investment in GRI Towers 

GraysMaker Advisory (Pty) Ltd GraysMaker Advisory (Pty) Ltd a shareholder of Umhlaba 

Lease Co. (Pty) Ltd, a subsidiary of Hulisani. Also, the 

managing director of Umhlaba is the sole shareholder of 

GraysMaker Advisory (Pty) Ltd.  

Gromac Agricultural Holdings (Pty) Ltd An associate of Optimise Advisory Solution (Pty) Ltd 

Marsay (Pty) Ltd The sole shareholder and director of Marsay (Pty) Ltd is a 

shareholder and director of Optimise Advisory Solution 

(Pty) Ltd, a subsidiary of Hulisani. 

Momentous Operation Services (Pty) Ltd  

Momentous Solar Farm (RF) (Pty) Ltd 

Shareholders of these entities are directors of RustMo1 

Solar Farm (RF) (Pty) Ltd 

MH Zilimbola 

AV Notshe 

MF Modau 

NP Gosa (resigned) 

DP Hlatshwayo 

PC Mdoda 

HH Schaaf 

ME Raphulu 

MP Dem 

Members of key management 

Nibira (Pty) Ltd The founding members, who are also the directors of 

Hulisani, are the directors of Nibira (Pty) Ltd 

 

Related party balances 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Trade receivables (a) 650 - 650 6,700 

Loans receivable (a) 6,679  6,679  

Other receivables (b) 5,201 5,201 5,201 5,201 

Loan receivables (c) - 416 6,532 5,612 

Other receivables (d) -  13,218 - 

     

(a) A subsidiary of Pele Green (Pty) Ltd, Pele SPV198 (Pty) Ltd entered into an agreement with Hulisani Limited to jointly 

subscribe for ordinary shares in Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd. Hulisani Limited subscribed for cumulative preference shares in 

Pele SPV198 (Pty) Ltd for the entity's funding of the ordinary shares subscription in Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd.  Other 

receivables are due from Pele Green Energy (Pty) Ltd, a parent company to Pele SPV198 (Pty) Ltd. 

(b) Sponsor fees refundable to Hulisani by Nibira (Pty) Ltd. The payment was rendered invalid and the amount remains 

owing to the group at the end of the financial period.  

(c) The loan is provided to Umhlaba Land Lease Co., Momentous Technologies and Optimise Advisory Services (Pty) Ltd 

subsidiaries of Hulisani, and Gromac Holding (Pty) Limited an associate of the Group. Hulisani has provided working 

capital funding to the subsidiaries, in line with the shareholder’s agreement.  

(d) Dividends accruing to Hulisani as at year end from the subsidiaries; Momentous Technology (Pty), Red Cap Investments 

(Pty) Ltd and Eurocap Renewables (Pty) Ltd.  
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33. Related parties (continue) 

 

Related party transactions 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Consulting fees (a) 2,467 4,765 - - 

Dividends (b) 3,297 2,514 - - 

Management fees (c) 2,458 3,580 - - 

     

(a) Umhlaba Land Lease Co. (Pty) Ltd and Optimise Advisory Solution (Pty) Ltd used the consulting services of GraysMaker 

Advisory (Pty) Ltd and Marsay (Pty) Ltd respectively. 

(b) Dividends were paid to Momentous Solar Farm (Pty) Ltd by RustMo1.  

(c) Management fees were paid to Momentous Operations Services (Pty) Ltd by RustMo1. 

 

Compensation to executive directors and key management 

 Group Company 

 2019 2018 2019 2018 

 R '000 R '000 R '000 R '000 

Short-term employee benefits 7,737 6,534 7,737 6,534 

 7,737 6,534 7,737 6,534 

 

34.  Directors' emoluments 

Executive 

  

 Salaries  Bonus Total 

2019 R’000 R’000 R’000 

ME Raphulu (Chief Executive Officer) 2,989 86 3,075 

MP Dem (Chief Financial Officer) 2,194 86 2,280 

MF Modau (Chief Investment Officer) 4 2,296 86 2,382 

 7,479 258 7,737 

 

 Salaries Bonus Total 

2018 R’000 R’000  

ME Raphulu (Chief Executive Officer)1 2,567 - 2,567 

M Booysen 2 1,177 - 1,177 

MP Dem (Chief Financial Officer) 3 1,395 - 1,395 

MF Modau (Chief Investment Officer) 4 1,395 - 1,395 

 6,534 - 6,534 
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34.  Directors' emoluments (continued) 

1 ME Raphulu was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 01 July 2017. 

2 Consulting fees are paid to TFT Financial Proprietary Limited who in turn remunerates MA Booysen. 

MA Booysen resigned as a Chief Financial Officer in 01 August 2017.  

3 MP Dem was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer with effect from 01 July 2017. 

4 MF Modau was appointed as a Chief Investment Officer, with effect from 01 July 2017. MF Modau 

resigned with effect from 28 February 2019. 

 

Non-executive 

 Directors' fees Total 

2019 R’000 R’000 

PC Mdoda (Chairman) 699 699 

NP Gosa 436 436 

DR Hlatshwayo 679 679 

HH Schaaf 781 781 

B Marx 796 796 

Total 3,391 3,391 

 

 Directors' fees Total 

2018 R’000 R’000 

PC Mdoda (Chairman) 218 218 

NP Gosa1 253 253 

DR Hlatshwayo 165 165 

HH Schaaf 863 863 

MF Modau (Chief Investment Officer) 100 100 

B Marx 201 201 

Total2 1,800 1,800 

 

1 NP Gosa resigned on 31 December 2018.  

2 AV Notshe and MH Zilimbola were not paid by Hulisani for the financial year under review 
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35.  Interest in other entities 

(a)  Material subsidiaries and associates 

The group’s material subsidiaries at 28 February 2019 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital 

consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the 

voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business. 

 

Entity name Place of 

business/country 

of incorporation 

Ownership 

interest held 

by the group 

Ownership 

interest held 

by the group 

Ownership 

interest held 

by other 

Ownership 

interest 

held by 

other 

 

 

Principle 

activities 

  2019 2018 2019 2018  

Direct subsidiaries 

 

      

Umhlaba Land Lease Co. (Pty) Ltd 
South Africa 90% 90% 10% 10% 

Property 

investments 

Optimise Advisory Services (Pty) Ltd1 South Africa - 90% - 10% Economic 
development 
activities 

Eurocape Renewables (Pty) Ltd South Africa 100% 100% - - Investment 
holding1.21% 
of 
Kouga 

Momentous Technologies (Pty) Ltd South Africa 100% 100% - - Investment 

holding - 66% 

of RustMo1 

Red Cap Investments (Pty) Ltd South Africa 100% 100% - - Investment 
holding 5.46% 
of 
Kouga 

Pele SPV13 (Pty) Ltd South Africa 100% 100% - - Investment 

holding - 25% 

of GRI 

Indirect subsidiaries 

RustMo1 Solar Farm RF (Pty) Ltd South Africa 66% 66% 34% 34% Energy 

production 

Associates 

GRI Wind Steel SA (Pty) Ltd South Africa 25% 25% 75% 75% 

Manufacturing 

Kouga Wind Farm (Pty) Ltd South Africa 6.67% 6.67% 93.33% 93.33% Energy 

production 

Gromac Agricultural Holdings1 
(Pty) Ltd 

South Africa - 49% - 51% Agriculture 

activities 

 

1  Optimise Advisory Services (Pty) Ltd was sold during the current year, refer to note 5 for further details.   
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35. Interest in other entities (continued) 

(b)  Non-controlling interest (NCI) 

Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the 

group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations. 

 RustMo1 RF (Pty) Ltd 

Summarised statement of financial position 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Current assets 41,805 33,929 

Current liabilities (24,747) (12,220) 

Current net assets 17,058 21,709 

Non-current assets 145,864 154,985 

Non-current liabilities (128,438) (133,936) 

 17,426 21,049 

Intangible assets arising from acquisition 56,761 60,609 

Non-current net asset 74,187 81,658 

Net assets 91,245 103,367 

Accumulated NCI  31,023 34,145 

  

 RustMo1 RF (Pty) Ltd 

Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Revenue 50,371 37,378 

Profit for the period 11,119 7,415 

Other comprehensive income - - 

Profits allocated to NCI 3,780 2,521 

Arising from acquisition (1,308) (981) 

Dividends paid to NCI (6,594) (5,027) 
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35. Interest in other entities (continued) 

 

 RustMo1 RF (Pty) Ltd 

Summarised statement of cash flows 2019 

R'000 

2018 

R'000 

Cash flows from operating activities 28,319 22,559 

Cash flows from investing activities (1,012) (23) 

Cash flows from financing activities (20,355) (17,482) 

 6,952 5,054 

 

36. Events after the reporting period 

No material events or circumstances were noted. 

37. Going concern 

The financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2019, have been prepared on a going concern basis. This basis 

presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations, and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 

contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

 


